
DURHAM PLANNING BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Durham Town Offices, 6:30 p.m. 
September 6, 2023 

NOTE: No public comment will be taken on individual applications at the meeting 
unless the Board schedules a formal public hearing with required notice posted.  
Comments on applications can be submitted in writing to the Town Planner and will be 
forwarded to the Planning Board and the applicants. 

1. Roll Call & Determination of a Quorum

2. Amendments to the Agenda

3. Acceptance of the Minutes of Prior Meetings (August 2, 2023)

4. Informational Exchange on Non-Agenda Items:
a) Town Officials
b) Residents (Public comment will be taken)
c) Non-Residents (Public comment will be taken)

5. Old Business

a) Public hearing on Conditional Use Application for Expansion of the Leisure
Campground for 112 RV sites, Map 2, Lot 13 (Public comment will be taken)

b) Substantive Review of Conditional Use Application for Expansion of the Leisure
Campground for 112 RV sites, Map 2, Lot 13 (Public comment will not be taken)

6. New Business:
a) Subdivision Sketch Plan Review for 4 Additional Lots, Ruby Farmview Subdivision,

Map 5, Lot 78B (Public comment will not be taken)

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 1



3. Acceptance of the Minutes of Prior Meetings (August 2, 2023)

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 2



1. Roll Call & Determination of a Quorum

In attendance:  John Talbot (Chair), Allan Purinton, Tyler Hutchison, Brian Lanoie, 
and George Thebarge (Town Planner). 

Absent:  Ron Williams (Resigned), Juliet Caplinger (Vice Chair) excused absence, 
and Anne Torregrossa (Alternate).  

The Chairman appointed Brian Lanoie as a voting member for the meeting. 

Guest:  Kenneth and Gwenn Huot (Applicant: Durham Leisure Campground) & interested 
parties. 

2. Amendments to the Agenda: None

3. Acceptance of the Minutes of prior meeting (July 5, 2023)

Tyler Hutchison moved to accept the July 5th, 2023 meeting minutes, Allan Purinton 
seconded. Tyler Hutchison amended his motion to accept the minutes with the edits on Item 
#9, should read zero (0) on votes to deny, not four (4). Allan Purinton seconded, motion 
carried 4 – 0.  

4. Informational Exchange on Non-Agenda Items:

a.) Town Officials 

George Thebarge, Town Planner 

Three Items to update the Planning Board: 

1. Conservation Commission was asked by the Planning Board to prepare a set of
draft amendments for the Town Meeting dealing with the solar energy systems
that we currently do not have any standards for in our ordinance, as well as for
cell towers. The Commission plans to move forward with the solar standards but
will need to put the cell tower standards on hold until next year.

2. The State mandate for increasing housing density (Affordable Housing Law)
requires the State to reimburse the Town for all expenses. This includes the
Town Planner, Planning Board stipends and any attorney fees that may be
incurred for the Town to comply with the State Law.

Town Of Durham 
Planning Board Minutes 

Town Offices, 6:30 pm  
August 2, 2023 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 3



3. The Town Manager was contacted by  GPCOG (Greater Portland Council of
Governments) about the availability of a MDOT (Maine Department of 
Transportation) Grant for doing facility studies in terms of future improvements. 
The Town Manager and a member of  GPCOG put together a proposal that they 
submitted to MDOT and received a grant for $8,000 to do a vision plan for 
Town Properties: Town Hall, Eureka Community Center, Fire Station and Ball 
Field.

Tyler Hutchison, Union Church Committee Member 

The Union Church Committee is meeting every two weeks and they are working on what 
the plan for the use of the Union Church will be going forward. They are looking into 
adjusting parking to allow for public events, looking at past construction repairs and 
looking towards the future and looking to see how much it will cost to preserve this 
building. 

b.) Residents – None 

c.) Non-residents – None 

5. New Business

a.) Conditional Use Application for expansion of the Leisure Campground for 112 RV 
sites, Map 2, Lot 13 (Public comment will not be taken) 

Town Planner Comments: 

• Durham Leisure Holdings LLC is seeking conditional use approval for an expansion
of the Leisure Campground.

• The application indicates that the current use is a seasonal RV park with 36 sites and
the proposed expansion will add another 112 sites in phases of 30 to 40 new sites per
year.

• One issue in the application that should be clarified is whether the proposal is for a
seasonal or year-round RV park. Page 2 of the application states that “we are mostly
a seasonal RV park” but goes on to state that the applicant seeks to “extend the length
of rental time for customers.”

• Section 5.8.J establishes occupancy time limits of 12 weeks for a period between
May 15 and September 15 and 2 weeks at all other times. The applicant should either
propose other specific time frames or request approval of a year-round RV park.

• Seasonal and year-round RV parks are not listed in the Land Use Ordinance as a
specific permitted or conditional use. As a use, RV parks are somewhere between a
campground and a mobile home park in terms of use and intensity.

• Section 3.1.31 of the Durham Land Use Ordinance is a catch-all provision for such
unspecified commercial uses, and the conditional use application seeks approval as a
“commercial service not otherwise listed.”

• The development of the road network and RV parking pads will trigger site plan
review of the project under Section 8.2.C.

• In 2019, the Land Use Ordinance was updated to create a 2-step process for review of
such nonresidential uses.

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 4



• The first step is a conditional use review to look at the proposed use and determine 
whether it will meet the criteria for protecting public health, safety, and the 
environment. The Board will also look at the scale and intensity of the proposed use 
and determine whether it will be “compatible” with existing uses in the 
neighborhood, as well as looking at the potential for noise generation.  

• If the Planning Board determines that the project can meet the general conditional use 
criteria, it would then review the more detailed project design under the site plan 
review criteria and standards of Article 8 as a separate application. 

• The subsequent site plan review process will look at utilization of the project site in 
terms of using the most suitable portions of the site and keeping development away 
from sensitive areas like wetlands. 

• Site plan review will also look at the adequacy of the road system, vehicular access to 
the site, and circulation within it. The Board will also consider in detail the utility 
systems (water, sewer, electrical), lighting, signage, and fire protection. Finally, the 
Board can consider whether any special buffering is needed to screen public views or 
neighbors.  

• For the current conditional use review, the applicant has submitted a completed 
conditional use application form with supporting documentation.  

• Recognizing that this project will need to go through a detailed site plan review, the 
Board can discuss and decide whether the documentation provided by the applicant is 
adequate to decide on compliance with the conditional use criteria of Section 7.4.  

• If the Board determines that the documentation is adequate, you can decide on the 
need for a site walk and public hearing and schedule those events. 

• If the Board determines that the documentation is not adequate, you should notify the 
applicant of what information needs to be submitted for the Board to consider the 
application to be complete.  

• If a majority of the Board determines that the applicant can meet the general 
conditional use criteria for expansion of the campground and conversion to a 
seasonal RV park, the applicant can proceed with detailed engineering design of the 
project to meet site plan review standards.  

• The Town Planner has prepared draft findings of fact reflecting the applicant’s 
current submissions that can be expanded during the Board’s processing of the 
application and will serve as the template for making a decision to approve, approve 
with conditions, or deny the application.  

• The draft findings of fact can also be used by the Board to identify information 
needed to make a determination on compliance with the conditional use criteria. 

 
Applicant Presentation: Kenneth and Gwenn Huot, 24 Leisure Lane, Durham, ME 
04222: 
 

• The applicants would like to expand their thirty-six (36) sites, by adding another one 
hundred twelve (112) sites for a total of 148 sites. 

• They are proposing to have 4,000 square feet per campsite. 
• They are currently having issues with large camping units (40 feet or larger) wanting 

to camp there, as well as tiny homes. 
• They would like to extend the current 12 week stay period. 
• They would like to accommodate more seasonal campers rather than transit campers. 
• Currently they do not have tent sites and nine (9) campsites are grandfathered for 

year-round stay. 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 5



• They would like to have sites available from early April to late October (weather 
permitting), instead of the 12-week period (May 15th through September 15th). 

 
Board discussion of application in light of the conditional use criteria and draft 
findings: 

 
John Talbot reviewed the basic requirements for campgrounds and indicated a need for 
more detailed and clear plans showing compliance with the standards. Documentation of 
the setbacks, density, and lot coverage should be provided. Mr. Talbot told the applicants 
they need to give specifics on the requested timeframes for occupancy. The applicant 
needs to prove that some sites are in fact “grandfathered.” 
 
Mr. Huot claimed that 9 sites are grandfathered and asked whether the Board is reviewing 
the proposal going forward or looking backward at the campground history. 
 
Allan Purinton pointed to the request for expansion of the existing campground as the 
basis on which the Board can require documentation of the existing campground use in 
terms of compliance with ordinance requirements. 
 
John Talbot questioned the proposed wastewater treatment capacity in light of the “park 
trailer” models that have higher flow rates. He pointed out that on some versions of the 
plans septic fields are within the well exclusion zones. He asked for details of the 
capacity of the water wells.  
 
Brian Lanoie asked the applicant for clarification of the current status of the campground. 
 
Mr. Huot stated that they bought the campground 9 years ago with 9 year-round 
campsites and 52 abandoned sites. They received Planning Board approval to reopen 37 
of those campsites. They added electrical, water, and sewer to those campsites. 
 
Mr. Talbot asked for clarification of the two entrances to the property. 
 
Mrs. Huot said one is the farmhouse driveway and the other is the campground entrance. 
People can’t really go through the farmhouse to get to the campground. 
 
Mr. Talbot asked the applicant to clarify the MDOT permit status. He also indicated the 
need to document the available sight distances at the campground entrance. 
 
Mr. Thebarge explained the process for documenting safe sight distances by a surveyor or 
engineer. He pointed to the MDOT email provided by the applicant that states they have 
no record of a permit and the proposed use would not trigger one.  That does not mean 
that MDOT considers it to be safe. 
 
Allan Purinton expressed concern with the larger camping units (40 feet or larger) pulling 
out onto the main roadway (Route 136) with a 50 mile an hour speed limit and being able 
to get up to speed safely. 
 
Mr. Talbot pointed to the concerns of the Fire Chief for width of the access roads and 
water supply for fire protection. He also raised concerns for the safety of the cell tower in 
terms of fall/drop zones and camper access to the tower. He suggested the applicant 
contact the cell tower owner for safe distances. 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 6



Mr. Talbot asked about pedestrian safety in terms of road widths. He also pointed to a 
large wetland shown on the map that is not mentioned in the wetland report. He asked for 
clarification of what areas the wetland report covers. 
 
Mr. Talbot asked for documentation of the setbacks from property lines and abutting 
structures. 
 
In response to Mr. Talbot’s question on hours of operation, the applicants indicated they 
would stick with the times indicated in the application. 
 
Mr. Talbot asked for an updated document on the state corporate status.  He indicated the 
need for a map showing where individual campsites are located for the Fire Department. 
 
He asked Mr. Thebarge to clarify documentation of the financial capacity of the 
applicant.  
 
Mr. Thebarge explained the need to convince the Board that the applicant has the capital 
ability to complete the project in terms of the infrastructure needed to service the 
campground. 
 
Mr. Talbot asked the applicant to be clear on what they are asking the Board to approve 
in terms of length of stays. 
 
Mr. Lanoie asked whether the owners are providing RVs or campers are bringing their 
own. 
 
Mrs. Huot explained that people are bringing in their own RVs. 
 
Mr. Huot added that 3 years ago they bought 5 RVs.  Two were put on year-round sites 
and they are looking to put the other 3 on other sites. 
 
Mrs. Huot explained that they are looking to service traveling nurses from April 1st when 
the ground thaws to the end of October.  They are not looking to have people living there 
year-round.  Only 9 of the sites can be used year-round. Five of the other sites are capable 
of being converted to year-round, but the rest are not capable for that due to ledge or 
other limitations on depth.  The five “cabin” RVS they bought they would like to make 
available to traveling nurses in the winter.  The other 113 sites will be closed in winter. 
They are looking for 5 extra year-round sites beyond the current 9. 
 
Mr. Huot explained that all of the new units are 400 square feet with one bedroom and 
they are on chassis with wheels touching the ground.  
 
Mr. Talbot pointed out that the current use does not meet ordinance limitations. 
 
Mr. Thebarge pointed to the importance of clearly documenting which sites are year-
round and which specific sites are seasonal. 
 
Mr. Talbot asked the applicants to put everything they are asking in writing and on the 
plans. 
 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 7



Mr. Hutchinson asked whether the Planning Board has authority under the Ordinance to 
grant approval for year-round use. 
 
Mr. Thebarge said that under the provision for other commercial uses the Planning Board 
can grant approval subject to other laws such as subdivision requirements. 
 
Mr. Lanoie asked for clear indication of what units the owners will be renting and people 
staying there will not be bringing in an RV. 
 
The Board is scheduling a Site Walk visit to the Durham Leisure Campground on 
Wednesday, August 16, 2023 at 5:30pm and is open to the public. The Board will also 
conduct a public hearing in September at the regular meeting. 

 
6.   Other Business:  

a) Board Discussion of Draft Land Use Ordinance Amendments (Public comment will not be 
taken) 

 
• At the July 10 Planning Board workshop, the Board endorsed moving forward with a 

combined proposal for presentation of the draft amendments for complying with the 
new State law on housing density. 

• The message going forward would be that the Planning Board is recommending that 
voters follow the Comprehensive Plan in terms of addressing housing needs for 
Durham residents while also increasing lot sizes to offset the impacts of the State’s 
requirement for increased housing density. 

• This approach is supported by the prior public participation process where survey 
respondents were evenly split between those concerned about housing needs for 
family members and those more concerned with the impacts of added housing. 

• The next phase of public participation can test the proposed Planning Board response 
to those varied resident concerns. 

• The Town Planner also drafted a new definition of “housing unit” to enable 
differentiating between the treatments of multiple accessory apartments and multiple, 
full-sized dwelling units, applying increased lot size to the latter situation required by 
LD 2003. 

 
7.   Adjourn 
 

Allan Purinton motioned to adjourn the meeting. Tyler Hutchison seconded, motion carried 4 – 0. 
Meeting adjourned at 8:50 pm. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 8



5.  Old Business: 

a. Public hearing on Conditional Use Application for Expansion of the Leisure 
Campground for 112 RV sites, Map 2, Lot 13 (Public comment will be taken). 

 
TOWN PLANNER COMMENTS: 
 

• The Planning Board bylaws provide that the Chairman is to describe the 
purpose of the public hearing and the procedures to be followed. 

• Per those bylaws, the Board may receive oral or documentary evidence but 
shall exclude irrelevant, or unduly repetitious evidence.  The Chairman shall 
make a determination of the relevance of any evidence or testimony and that 
determination can be challenged by a motion of any Board member subject to a 
majority vote of the Board members. 

• Every party shall have the right to present its case in the order determined by 
the Chairman and without interruption. 

• The Chairman may impose such reasonable time limits as may be necessary to 
ensure that all parties have an adequate opportunity to be heard.  

• Every party shall have the right to submit rebuttal evidence and to conduct 
cross examination of any other party through the Chair, provided however, that 
the Chairman may impose such other reasonable limitations as may be 
necessary to prevent an abuse of process. 

• An aggrieved party is defined as any person who can demonstrate that he or 
she will suffer a particularized injury by issuance or non-issuance of the 
license/permit approval in question. A particularized injury is one that directly 
operates against a party’s property, pecuniary or personal rights. An injury 
suffered by all of the citizens of the Town in an equal and proportionate 
manner is not a particularized injury (Section 19.7 Durham Land Use 
Ordinance). 

• Comments and questions should be focused on helping the Planning Board 
determine whether the application meets the adopted conditional use criteria 
as opposed to debating Town growth management policies which are set at 
Town Meeting and must be followed by the Planning Board. 

• The application and staff comments were made available on the Town website 
and the purpose of the public hearing is to receive public input on the 
application and not to have an explanation of the process and Ordinance 
requirements. 

• These procedures and limitations on public input are required to ensure that 
the applicant and affected parties are given due process and the legal deadlines 
for a Planning Board decision on the application can be met. 

 

 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 9



5.  Old Business: 

b. Substantive Review of Conditional Use Application for Expansion of the 
Leisure Campground for 112 RV sites, Map 2, Lot 13 (Public comment will be 
taken). 

 
TOWN PLANNER COMMENTS: 
 

• The Planning Board conducted a site walk for the Leisure Campground 
application on August 16 from 5:30 to 6:30 p.m.  John Talbot, Brian Lanoie, and 
Tyler Hutchison attended.  A photographic record of the site features observed 
by Board members during the site visit is included in the packet. 

• On August 2 the Planning Board reviewed the application and had numerous 
questions about the existing use and proposed expansion. The packet contains 
copies of the Planning Board and Board of Appeals past decisions and approval 
conditions. 

• In April of 1986, the Planning Board approved a conditional use permit for 110 
campground sites with a maximum of 40 to be installed in the first year and 
with an 11 pm curfew. 

• In June of 1986, the Board of Appeals denied an appeal filed by neighbors of the 
project to overturn the Planning Board decision. 

• In March of 1987, the Planning Board and prior owner affirmed agreement to a 
campground discontinuance provision (one year) and requirement for Planning 
Board approval of any transfer of campground ownership. 

• In October of 2016, the current applicant applied for and received Planning 
Board conditional use approval to expand from 9 sites to 34 sites with a finding 
that the campground was required to comply with the seasonal time limits of 
the Ordinance which were applied as an approval condition along with all other 
campground requirements contained therein. 

• In November of 2016, the Board of appeals denied a variance request to reduce 
the required 100-foot property line setback for campsites.  In that variance 
request, the current applicant requested relief from the time limits of the 
Ordinance, which the Board also denied.  The record indicates that when the 
current applicant acquired the property, there were 9 licensed sites. 

• In April of 2017, the applicant obtained ownership of a Town-owned property 
and received Planning Board conditional use approval to add 2 more campsites. 
That approval again reiterated the seasonal time of occupancy limits of the 
Ordinance being applicable to the campground as an approval condition. 

• On August 15, the applicant submitted a revised “Existing Conditions Plan” 
showing a fall zone around the cell tower.  The updated plan also indicates that 
the applicant is now requesting approval of 40 new campsites or a total of 76. 
The revised plan does not differentiate between existing or proposed seasonal 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 10



and year-round campsites. 

• On August 28, the applicant provided the following additional submissions: 

o Updated corporate filing report (2022); 

o Campground addressing and site numbering diagram; 

o HHE-606 State of Maine Health Inspection Program License Application 
for Campground & Event Camping; and, 

o Color-coded diagram showing the proposed year-round and seasonal 
campsites and utility lines. 

 

  

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 11



TOWN OF DURHAM 
630 Hallowell Road 
Durham, Maine  04222 
 
Office of Code Enforcement              Tel. (207) 353-2561 
and Planning     Fax: (207) 353-5367 
 

  
Memo To:    Durham Planning Board 
 
From:  George Thebarge, Durham Town Planner 
 
Date:  August 21, 2023 
 
Re:  Site Walk Photos 
 
  
On Wednesday, August 16, 2023, the Durham Planning Board held a site walk at 24 Leisure Lane, to 
review existing conditions at the Leisure Campground. Board Members in attendance were John 
Talbot, Brian Lanoie, and Tyler Hutchison.  Staff present were Planner George Thebarge, Chief Tripp 
and Captain Salve from Durham Fire & Rescue. The campground owners were present along with 
two members of the public. The following photos document observations made during the site 
walk: 
 
Photo 1: Campground Office & Living Quarters 
 
 

 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 12



 
 
 
 
Photo 2: Campground Swimming Pool 
 

 
 
Photo 3: Campground Access Road 
 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 13



Photo 4: “Park Model RV” owned by campground operators & rented out beside 
individually owned RV on rented site: 
 

 
 
Photo 5: Year-round cabin 

 
 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 14



Photo 6: Water supply well (one of three) 
 

 
 
Photos 7 & 8: Cell Tower 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 15



Photo 9: Mailbox bank & dumpster 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Photos 10 & 11: Entrance sight distances looking south and north on Rt. 136 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 16



1. 

PLANNING BOARD MEETING 
April 2f 1986 

Members present: Jabaut, Parker, Daniels ,.}!.rooks, •v 19:r 
Alternate McLaughlin I' Pit't1l""1 N\l!MflfiCZ..\...,~'f 

2. Age nda Item 11: Charles Hoar presented a subdivision 
description for 3 lots on the Old Brunswick Road. The 
subdivision is required after the fact due to a defect 
created in 1977 by the former land owner who did not wait 
five years prior to selling a parcel-~ The proposed 
subdivision was approved unanimously.\S,Mo) 

3. Agenda Item 12: Application for Conditional .Use Permit for 
the Durham Leisure Center on Route 136 (Harold and Lorraine 
Cochrane) for a proposed campground. 

a. Description of project: 

l. 140 sites proposed. 

2. Formally requested Amendment to prior Conditional Ose 
Permit granted for a health club. · 

3. Approximately 1/3 of the lots will have power and l/2 ' 
of the lots on-site water. 

4. State requitements must be met with regard to 
poftable water supply, sewer, arid shower facilities. 
A lull State revi~w is required prior to receiving a 
State license. 

b. Public comment and response: 

1. Police protection: Residents expressed concern over 
lack of protection in Durham. With 140 sites, it 
would be possible to have over 500 people on-site. 
The applieant responded with a survey he had made of 
several regional police and sheriff departments. 

· Across the board, he found that campgrounds did not 
present problems to local residents. Surprisingly 
the biggest police problem with campgrounds is local 
residents stealing from campers. 

2. Residents expressed extreme concern over increases of 
traffic. The response was that the slight increase 
in traffic from the campground would not be 
noticeable on a heavily travelled road like Route 
136. 

3. Residents asked the type of rental being solicited. 
~ppl i cant responded that he intended to 111ake it a 
family campground area with some seasonal rental, 
some weekly, and nightly sites available. 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 17



4. Residents were extremely concerned that the 
neighborhood was not appropriate for commercial 
development such as being proposed. 

5. Residents expressed concern over fire hazards created 
by a campground with fires. Applicant responded that 
any fires would require a fire permit from the fire 
chief similar to that obtained by any resldent in 
town. 

c. Planning board questions/response: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

Brooks stated that the police issue does not appear 
valid based upon the thorough survey of police and 
sheriff departments conducted by the applicant. 

Brooks ~tated that based upon evidence presented, the 
applicant has not demonstrated that the proposal is 
"compatible with adjacent land use", Item 16 in the 
conditional use ordinance. Applicant responded with 
"if this proposal is not compatible, what is"? 

Members expressed concern that although the 
applicant's intentions and credibility appeared 
adequate, there was considerable concern over a 
change in ownership in the facility. ( 'Pa~1'i 007"" Aui0~4:TIC.At.J....,7 

Jabaut stated that the conditional use permit is ~~~~~1.t.~ ~ 
required based upon the proposed facilities v~oll.J c;.._1...~, 
"commercial" use, in addition to it being a 
•campground". 

d. Applicant further described his intentions and 
implementation as follows: 

1. First year: 40 sites. 

2. Second year: 25 sites. 

3. Third year: 25 sites. 

4. Cabins are included in the permit. 

5. Although the applicant requesting 140 sites, he was 
hopeful ~hat only 80 sites will ultimately be 
installed. A•._,~~ ., '-' 4 •e,. M .,. ·~M,~C, P1•c..u••eP, ....,..._._l) l 1 N c,CZ.,'1' &. "s:;;.... I , 

After much discussion, the applicant agreed to the 
following modifications (conditions) to his application. 

1. Limit ultimate size to 110 sites maximum. 

2. Limit construction to 40 sites during the first year. 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 18



I • , . ; : · ':• · 'l O <' c 0 ·::_ j n S 
,\ p 1 :.. L .~ , l 9 f\ 6 
Page Three 

3. Require a curfew of llp.m. 

Upon motion, Duly seconded, it was Voted to approve the 
applicant's Conditional Use Permit subject to the above 
outlined additional conditions. Board member Koenig 
Abstained. Board members I I t, Parker, Daniels, an.d 
McLaughlin voted for approval. Board member Brooks voted 
for denial. 

4. Be there no other items to come before the board, upon motion 
Duly seconded, it was Voted to adjourn. 

,R#Y•::zu 
Stephens. Brooks 
Secretary 

/lal 

IZSAP AM1' u,ti,~&G,T"8,P /. T ~"fU£r4E. Jeee "'••T•AJ'7 
6 / 1 ,~ , A ('f'elNtt,D. 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 19



-

COPY 
FINDINGS OF FACT 

On February 1, 1984, the Respondents. Harold and Lorraine Coch~ane 
appeared before the. Durham Planning Board to support their applicat:.on for 
a conditional-use permit to operate a recreational facility on thei~ property 
located on Route 136 in Durham. That property consists of approximately 
fifty (50) acres surrounded on three sides by woodland and on the four-ch side 
by Koute 136~ a major state road between Freeport and Lewiston. That appli
cation did not include camp-sites. It did include a site-plan shcn.~ag the 
proposed location of several buil~ings and the size and location of the 
proposed access from Route 136, It was granted unanimously by the ?lanning 
Board. 

On May 2, 1984, the Cochranes petitioned the Durham Planning &ard to 
amend the conditional-use perm.it to allow the relocation of one str-..cture 
and change the set-back from abutting property located on the nortbvest side 
of the Cochranes' property. The amendments were approved as presen~ed. The 
project as approved at that time contained a requirement that the C:chranes 
provide visual screening for all neighbors. 

In Marc.h, 1986, the Cochranes filed a request with the Durha1J1. P:.anning 
Board to amend the conditional-use permit to allow a 140 site campg~ound on 
8-10 acres of their land. That request was subsequently altered to a request 
for a 110 site campground to include visual screening and phased-de,elopment 
with no more than 40 sites to be built in the fir$t year. 

The Planning Board held a meeting on April 2, 1986 to consider :he 
Cochranes' application. Board members present at that meeting were Jabaut, 
Daniels, Brooks and McLaughlin. Pending member Koenig was also pre~~nt, 
Harold and Lorraine Cochrane were present and submitted a written p~oposed 
site plan in support of their application, although the Durham Land ~se 
Ordinance does not require that such a plan he submitted, as well a~ a 
written summary of a phone survey conducted by the Cochranes of are.a police 
departments regarding any problems related to campgrounds. Mr. Coe'·. :"ane 
also spoke in support of this plan. A number of opponents to the cznpground, 
including Mrs. Mari Loeschner, also appeared and spoke. They speci:ically 
expressed their concerns about police protection. traffic hazards. :,Jmpatibility 
with stirrounding uses and fire hazards. The opponents did not presc:1t any 
written evidence nor did they spec~fically ask the Planning Board f~~ additional 
time in which to prepare a case against the campground. Neither siie presented 
expert testimony. 

After much discussion before the Planning Boardt the Cochranes a~reed to 
modify their original request by reducing the nUD1ber of campsites fcJm 140 
to 110, limiting construction to 40 sites during the first year of ~Jeration, 
and imposing a curfew of 11 p.m. in the campground. The Planning B~~rd 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 20



specifically approved the aiqueat •• ameDdad. and ~oted that the three 
agreed-upon changea were to be imposed u condition■ on the permit. The 
Planning Board imposed as an additional condition a limitation oC the per
mit that prohibited the transfer of the permi.t to aay other owner of the 
property without Planning Board approval. The Planning Board also noted 
the existence of the screening requirements contained in the original ~er
mit issued to the Cochranes in 1984 and of the adequacy of those screening 
requirements to protect neighbors fmm activities normally associated with 
campgrounds, 

In discussing and deciding issues raised by the application for a 
campground, the Planning Board followed its e■tablished practice of 
specifically considering only those factors c011.tained in Section 6.2.5 
of the Durham Land Use Ordinance that were clearly applicable to a proposed 
project or that were raised as issues by the parties before the Board. Any 
factors not specifically addressed were considered to be resolved in favor 
of the applicant. In this case :he Planning Board specifically discussed 
the adequacy of £ire and police protection. access to and from the campsite 
in relation to traffic hazards. compatibility with adjacent uses. the 
reliability of the campground opera~or1 the existence aud effectiveness 
of pre-existing screening requirements and health concerns related to 
garbage, rubbish, vermin and the disposal of human waste. In relation to 
the health issue, the Planning Board concluded that these concerns were 
more than adequately covered by the extensi~e State laws and regulations 
covering campgrounds and septic disposal and with which the Planning Board 
was familiar. 

The Planning Board also addressed whether the campsite complied with 
size requirement for campgrounds contained in section 4.3 of Durham's Land 
Use Ordinance. After applying the concept of clustering to the map presented 
by the Cochranes, the Planning Board concluded that the requirements of 
section 4.3 "Were met. The ordinance does not explicitly allow or prohibit 
the use of the concept of clustering. The Planning Board has used it in 
the past in other matters not involving campgrounds. A different plan of 
the proposed campground was presented to the Durham Board of Appeals. How
ever, if clustering is applied, that plan also complies with section 4.3 of 
the ordinance. 

Legal Issues 

(1) Whether the Planning Board conducted the review required by law. 

(2) Whether the Durham Land Use Ordinance allows clustering. 

(3) Whether the petition to reverse the decision of the Planning Board 
should be granted. 

Decision 

(1) The Planning Board conducted the review required by law. 

The Durham Land Use Ordinance articulates 16 factors that the Planning 
Board should consider before it issues or denies a conditional-use perm.it 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 21



{See Section 6.2 . 5). The petitioners cite the failure of the Planning Board 
to explicitly address facbors number 12 and 13; however, the silence of the 
Planning Board on those issues ooly means that the Planning Board did not 
consider it necessary to engage in a discussion of those issues because the 
Planning Board was in unanimous agreement t hat the proposed plan would have 
no adverse impact on the concerns protected by those factors. Furthermore, 
none of the opponents before the Planning Board raised concerns about topography 
drainage or erosion. Befor.e the Board of Appeals (BOA), the petitioners limited 
their complaint to the fact that the Planning Board did not address those fac
tors. The petitioners did not seek to demonstrate as a factual matter that 
the proposed plan would adversely affect the concerns protected by Section 6.2.5 
(12) and (13). Nor is it clear that the petitioners would have been allowed 
to do so had they tried since Durham's Land Use Ordinance states that "the 
Board of Appeals may reverse the decisions of the Planning Board or Code En
forcement Officer only upon a finding that the decision is clearly (emphasis 
added) contrary to specific provisions of this Ordinance (§6 .3 .2)" While at 
least two members of the BOA believe t;1at the Planning Board may have been 
somewhat hasty in its review and that the Planning Board would be well advised 
to make specific findings for each of the 16 factors listed in f6.2.5., even 
if suc h findings consist only of a short statement concluding that a particular 
fact or is not relevant to the application before the Board and the reasons 
supporting that conclusion, the BOA as a whole concludes that it cannot say 
that the silence of the Planning Board is clearly contrary to a specific 
provision of the ordinance, 

Nor does the fact that the Planning Board didn't create conditions in 
relation to fire or police protection mean that the Planning Boat·d didn't 
evaluate those issues as required by the ordinance. It simply means that the 
Cochranes presentation was sufficient on those issues. The petitioners may 
disagree, but they haven't demonstrated that the Planning Board's action on 
those issues is c learly contrary to a specific provision of the Land Use 
Ordinance. 

For similar reasons, the petitioners' complaints as articulated in 
paragraphs 2, 3 and 4 of their Exhibit #2 must fail, The concerns about 
access, intensity of use and the location of structures articulated in those 
paragraphs were all addressed by the Planning Board to the degree that the 
Planning Board felt necessary to comply with the ordinance, In reaching 
i.ts decision on these issues the Planning Board clearly relied on evidence 
submi t t ed by the Cochranes as part of their initial application in 1984, but 
that practice is not a clear violation of any specific provision of the ordi
nance . Nor can the BOA properly question the Planning Board's decision about 
how much time needed to be spent on any particular issue or what evidence 
was s ufficient to support the applicant's burden. Those are discretionary 
decisions and the scope of review established by the ordinance clearly pro
hibits the BOA from substituting its judgment for the Planning Board's on 
such matters. The record before the BOA, when viewed in its entirety, is 
s ufficient to support the conclusion that the Planning Board's decision does 
not clearly violate a s pecific provision of the Durham ordinance. 

Petitioners also attack the Planning Board's failure to impose any 
conditions addressing s ewage and trash disposal. Once again, the failure to 
impose conditions does not mean that the matter wasn't considered by the 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 22



Planning Board. In this case, the Planning Board concluded that aiuce th• 
State had extensive laws cont,olliog both of those iaeuea (see the rulea 
promulgated for Tent and Recreational Vehicles in Chapter 205 by the Depart
ment of Human Services and the State statutes on septic disposal, including 
the State plumbing code), there was no need for the Planning Board to dupli
cate the effort represented by those laws . The Planning Board knew that 
the Cochranes had to get both campground and plumbing permits from the State 
before t hey could begin to operate. Sinc e those laws are relatively compre
hens ive and detailed, the Planning Board's reliance was not misplaced, par
ticularly in light of the fact that the Durham ordinance contains no criteria 
or standards for the Planning Board to apply on those issues. No specific 
provision of the Durham ordinance clearly prohibits such reliance nor does 
it clearly violate any existing provision of the ordinance. 

Petitioners have further complained that the campground project violates 
the Durham ordinance because it is incompatible with adjacent land usea 
(§6 . 2.5.6). The legality of that provision ~f the Duwham ordinance is highly 
ques tionable -in light of Chandler v. Town of Pittsfield, 496 A. 2d 1058 (Me. 
1985), since the ordinance contains no standards for determining compatibility. 
Legality aside, there was sufficient evidence before the Planning Board and 
the BOA to conclude either that the use was compatible or incompatible, and 
for that reason the petitioners did not demonstrate that the Planning Board's 
decision on that issue clearly violated a specific provision of the ordinance. 

(2) The Durham Land Use Ordinance allows clustering. Another attack 
levelled by the petitioners focuses on the concept of clustering. The Planning 
Board applied that concept to the map before it and concluded that the proposal 
met the requirement contained in Section 4.3.l of the Durham ordinance that 
"camping areas shall contain a minilllutn of 2.500 square feet of suitable lend, 
not including roads and driveways. for each site." The words "site" and "area" 
are not defined in the ordinance, so the ordinance is ambiguous at best on this 
issue. No specific provision of the ordinance prohibits the use of the concept. 
Furthermore, the Planning Board has apparently applied the concept in the past 
t o other projects and the town has not reacted by amending the ordinance so as 
to prohibit or limit the use of the concept. Based on these facts and the fact 
that the plan presented to the BOA also satisfies the ordinance if clustering 
is applied, the BOA concludes that the Planning Board has not clearly violated 
a specific provision of the ordinance by using the concept of clustering. 

(3) The petition to reverse the decision of the Planning Board is not 
granted. Tae petition is denied . 

Based on the entire record. including testimony before the BOA of both 
parties and of members of the Planning Board, and the finding of fact and 
conclusions of law previously noted in this opinion, it 18 the decision of 
the undersigned that the petition is not granted. It is denied . 

Date of Original 
Decision: j{yL)E 5:, l<:fg'y; 

Date upon which this 
written decision was 
signed: 

--~~ \9 \'i6~ 

ppea s 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 23



"· 2.; f"d. dtft S ~ t:~I, -b UJ-Mcldur11 J Uk.S. 

.t~ ~~1·1~t:l~?.1~h1::g~~~~~; ~X,!~'1;, ~CllAd ~~ 
=.1 ·,-..: ~ipor, : 

(lJ 1ht· :-;1 l ~"H 1:n,10..:~ o f s .;.a f , . .1nd h t"n l thfu l c o nd1 t. i ons . 
(~) T!,~ :~~~ v ~nt1 0 :, d~<l c ~n tro l oi ~~ter po l l u tio n ~~d 

.. i\ C li.L" r'l l . l t ~01L 

(!) ; h1: ,1.'ntr1.) : of buildi ng s ites, p l.lCcilleOt o f t tru(·tures 
,H'l<J J.1r.:l l!C1~~-

i 4) i·,..- ;, r ,>: ,•ni :,n ,,r ,,,,,, ..,n t nR srounds , f i sh, aq:i.<ti c l ife , 
~ .rci . \nd \lt h ~. :- ·.•\Jdi1:' e ha bi t a t. 

(', ,> 7 h C' (" c;n~ P. r v J t i o n o f shor e cover .. V\;,u,ll iJ.S well ...-.s ctctu3 1 
r ~l n, s of ~cc~ s~ t u in : ~nd ~nd coas ta l ~at e rs ~nd natural 
b~,"1 •..t c". 

''" 7 1it• c ,mpaubi l nv oi t he p~oposed us e ,.,ith a dj Acent l and 
" '"'·:~ . 

~J ~ l'h~ iu~c•d of . 1 par t i t" u!a r l o cac inn for the proposed use. 
(H l ~~c~~ s t o t~e si te fr o~ exi st ing nr proposed roads. 
I ii 1 hw locot i on c f the sltc ~ith r es pec t to f lood plains 

~n d ! loodv~~s o f rivers o r streams. 
11D) lhu ~~au~ r und t~ pe of was 1es co h~ gene r a t ed by t he 

p r ~ pc,,a.:?ci use and t he .idequacy o f t he pro posud dis posal 
.,; vs t~ms . 

(ll ) T~c !~pace of th e propos ed us e on the land and ~djacenc 
wa t~r bod i eN and the c~pability of the land a nd w~Ler to 
sust~i~ s\1r h use witheiut deg~adacion. 

!12) Ex ist ~ng t o pog~a~h 1c 3nd dra inage f ea t ures and vege t a t i ve 
cove•·. 

( LJ) Th,, ~r,,5ic':'I pcte ncia l of the site hascd upon dcgr<.>e a11d 
di r ~ccion of slope, soi l type and vegetative cov~r. 

(1 4) The !~pact cf the propos ed use on transportation [acill t ies. 
( J S) The i ~pa cr o f t he proposed use on l ocal populati on and 

COtnlllunity fa c i l i t i es . 
(16 ) The i mpac t o f the proposed use on l ocal wat er s uppltes, 

A r o py of a ll vari ances granted by th<.> Beard of Appeal~ shall be 
sul;mit t r. d u, the State Plannir,g Office. The Board of Appeals may, 
upon wr i t ten ap~Jlcation nf t he affected l andowne r , grant a v~rl
.:i 11ce fr c m the s t ri ct a ppli cat i on of t he Or d inance under the 
i o l : ,-,...Ing cond i tions: 

a, Th• s tr i c t appl i cation of the terms o f 1his Ordinance ~ould 
re .sui t in undue h1'rdship t o the applicant; 

h . 7h e har dshi p 1s not t he r e sul t o f act ion taken by t :,c a ppl1-
can, e r a pr ior ovner ; and 

c. The Board of Appeals, based on clear and ~onv1nc ini evidenc e 
pres•:n c cd to it, makes a finding that the proposed use would 
meet t he provisions of paragraph 6.2.5. 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 24



To Whom it may concern: 

TOWN OF DURHAI\1 
PLANNING BOARD 

DUR HAM, MAINE 

P. 0. BOX 209 

LISBON FALLS, MAINE 04252 

As of this date April 2, 1986 , the Durham Planning Boud hereby 

grants conditional ap~roval to: Harold & Lorraine Cochrane of 
(name/s} 

Box 276 RFD Me. 040 2 
address es) 

fur the purpose of ;Expanding Durham Leisure Ctr' s operation to in- as 

elude. a 110 site Campground 
described on the attached •. 

This auDrovtl shall r~~ain in effect on a continuing basis so 10113 as the 
use remains as. requested, If the condi tic:.>ns upon which this pemi t. is gran.tcd 
change, the holtlar/s of this permit shall request an amen9,11:snt to this pernit. 
Sho~ld the activity 0.o~w:--ibctl ._,J ,ove cease ror more than a period of one yecJX, 
this approval .ri.11 no longer be in effect. l I· I · 2 . · · · · i t 
uho •ls s mad, .. u14<1 ••u• ie1 sou h 1 1.tin l J e · ~ls1 , t 7 · 8 h i J. 

ree to abide by the terms as qA;a2 . 
ate 

Additional condi~ions :r-squired of applicant: 

Phasing in the develapment with the first year including a 
maximum of 40 ~jtes, and providing visual screening for the 

neighbors. A curfew of 11:00 P.M. will also be enforced. 

(C~ntinued on a 2nd page) 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 25



TOWN OF DURHAM 
PLANNING BOARD 

DURHAM, MAINE 

P. 0. BOX 209 

LISBON FALLS, MAINE 04252 

March 27, 1987 

He: Conditional permission granted to Harold and Lorraine Cochrane to expand 
their Durha.~ Leisure Center's operation to include a llO site campground. 

Dear Hr. and Ers. Cochrane: 

In response to your recent request for a clarification of the Planning 
Board 1 s approval of the above named practice, I have spoken to each regular 
Board member and i-Te agree to the following: 

1. This conditional pennission is non-transferrable 
Hithout planning board approval to the extent 
that the above named persons have not c0111pleted 
construction of the recreational facility. To the 
extent the construction o! all or a portion of 
the recreational facility has been completed, 
this conditicnal permission in transferrable 
without further plan.'"lj_ng board approval to 
pcrnit the use and operation as described herein 
of that portion of the recreation facility for 
Hhich construction is complete. 

2. :vnereas you have yet to begin operating your 
cG...-::p.;rou.nJ., th,; cessation prevision does net apply 
at this tL~e. This restriction applies after construction 
is completed and operation has begun. 

Sincerely yours, r•,V~ 
· Russell ,~autJ Ch. 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 26



.; 

The Board next reviewed the Approval Criteria for Campgrounds with Mindy Woerter 
recording. 

Vice Chairman Anne Torregrossa Moves that the applicants meet the Campground 
Requirements with the condition that they comply with all plumbing and DHHS Regulations, if 
any, Item #3-k for campgrounds - number of says allowed up to 180 days or twelve weeks 
from May 15th through September 15th 

, then two weeks at a time in winter. John Simoneau 
Second. Motion Carried 5-0. 

Copies of the following recorded by Mindy Woerter will be placed by Secretary Toher in the 
Applicants file: Conditional Use Permit Application Check List, Approval Criteria - Conditional 
Use Permit and Conditional Use Permit Criteria - Campgrounds Application Check List. 

The Houts were advised that they would need a Variance from the Appeals Board to include 
those campsites that do not conform with the required setbacks. 

Other Business - Codes Official: Codes Official Baines stated that the MMA has 
recommended language changes to the existing Sign Ordinance. The Ordinance Workshop 
will work on this. 

Chairman's Comments: 

Chairman Beaulieu announced the following: 

a. Land Use Ordinance WORKSHOP, Wednesday, October 18th 2016 at the 
Town Office beginning at 6:30 p.m. 

b. Next Meeting -Wednesday, November 2nd 2016 at the Town Office at 7:00 p.m. 
c. Applications Due- Monday, October 24th 2016 by 4:30 p.m. at the Town Office. 

Adjournment: Mindy Woerter Moves to Adjourn at 9:08 p.m. Michael Fitzpatrick Second. 
Motion Carried 5-0. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jill S. Toher 
Meetings Secretary 

Planning Board Minutes 10-5-2016 page 3 of 3 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 27

geotheb1
Rectangle



Town of Durham 
Planning Board 

Applicant(s) : Durham Leisure Holdings LLC Date:10/5/16 

To Expand the existing 9 site campground to a 34 site campground. Two of the 
originally proposed campsites under this application did not meet the setback 
requirements or the Town of Durham Land Use Ordinance. The applicant agreed to 
amend the application to a total of 34 sites so as to comply with the current ordinance. 

Map #, 2 Lot # 13 

Recorded by: Mindy Woerter 

Approval Criteria - Conditional Use Permit: 

The following criteria are to be used by the Planning Board in judging applications for 
conditional use approval and shall serve as minimum requirements for approval of the 
conditional use. The conditional use shall not be approved if in the judgment of the Planning 
Board the applicant is not able to reasonable meet one or more of these standards. In all 
instances, the burden of proof shall be on the applicant and such burden of proof shall include 
the production of evidence necessary to complete the application and persuade the Board. 
All conditional uses must be shown by the applicant to satisfy the following criteria: 

1) will not result in undue water or air pollution. 

COMPLETE 

A. Torregrossa moves to find that the proposed project will not impact air or water quality. 
M. Fitzpatrick seconds. 
Motion carries 5-0 

2) Has sufficient water available for the reasonably foreseeable needs of the proposed 
use, including fire protection. Will not cause an unreasonable burden on existing 
water supply, if one is to be utilized. This criteria shall include use of an aquifer and 
the applicant must show that its use will not harm the wells of those currently relying 
upon said aquifer. 

INCOMPLETE 

J. Simoneau moves to find that the project meets this criteria with the condition that the 
applicant provides the flow rate report. A. Torregrossa seconds. 
Motion carries 5-0 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 28

geotheb1
Rectangle



3) Will not cause unreasonable soil erosion or reduction in the capacity of the land to 
hold water so that a dangerous or unhealthy condition may result. 

COMPLETE 

J. Simoneau moves to find that the project will not cause soil erosion due to the land 
previously being developed. M. Fitzpatrick seconds. 
Motion carries 5-0 

4) Will not cause highway or public road congestion or unsafe conditions with respect 
to use of the highway or public road existing or proposed. 

COMPLETE 

J. Simoneau moves to find that the project will not cause road congestion or unsafe 
conditions based on the review by the Maine Department of Transportation. M. Fitzpatrick 
seconds. 
Motion carries 5-0 

5) Will provide for adequate sewage disposal in conformity with the State Plumbing 
Code and all other applicable regulations. 

COMPLETE 

J. Simoneau moves to find that the submitted evidence shows the project has adequate 
sewage disposal and complies with the state plumbing code. M. Fitzpatrick seconds. 
Motion carries 5-0 

6) The proposed development will have adequate fire protection. 

COMPLETE 

A. Torregrossa moves to find that this condition is met since the project is within one mile of a 
water source. M. Fitzpatrick seconds. 
Motion carries 5-0 

7) Will not have any undue adverse effect on the scenic or natural beauty of the area, 
aesthetics, historic sites or rare and irreplaceable natural areas, any deer wintering 
areas identified by the Maine Department of Fish and Wildlife or other agency or public 
rights for physical or visual access to water bodies. 

COMPLETE 

A. Torregrossa moves to find that the project will not create adverse conditions for scenic 
areas or wildlife because the campground has been at the site for a long time and because 
it's fully screened. M. Fitzpatrick seconds. 
Motion carries 5-0 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 29



8) Is in conformance with the Town's Comprehensive Plan, and all other applicable 
Town Ordinances. 

,INCOMPLETE 
A. Torregrossa moves to find that this criteria is not met as the project is proposed, but is met 
with the condition that the applicants either maintain a 100-foot setback from all property lines 
or obtain a variance. M. Fitzgerald seconds. 
Motion carries 5-0 

9) The applicant has adequate financial and technical capacity to meet the standards 
required by this Ordinance. 

INCOMPLETE 

A. Torregrossa moves to find that this criteria is met with the condition that the applicant 
provide documentation to show that Durham Leisure Holdings LLC has adequate financial 
capacity. M. Fitzgerald seconds. 
Motion carries 5-0 

10) Whenever situated in whole or in part, within 250 feet of any pond, lake, stream or 
river waters, will not adversely affect the quality of such body of water or reasonably 
affect the shoreline of such body of water. 

N/A 

A. Torregrossa moves to find that this criteria does not apply. T. Beaulieu seconds. 
Motion carries 5-0 

11) Will not, alone or in conjunction with existing activities, adversely affect the quality 
or quantity of ground water. 

COMPLETE 

A. Torregrossa moves to find that this project will not affect ground water because it will not be 
discharging anything. M. Fitzgerald seconds. 
Motion carries 5-0 

12) The applicant will determine, based on the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency's Flood Boundary and Floodway Maps and Flood insurance Rate Maps, 
whether the site of the proposed use is in a flood-prone area .If the site o9f proposed 
use, or any part of it, is in such an area the applicant will determine the 100-year flood 
elevation and flood hazard boundaries within the site. The proposed use shall include 
a condition of plot approval requiring that principal structures on any lots where the 
proposed use is to be conducted shall be constructed with their lowest floor including 
the basement, at least three (3) feet above the 100-year flood elevation and will only be 
constructed if permitted under the Town's Flood Hazard Ordinance. 

NIA 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 30



A. Torregrossa moves to find that this criteria does not apply because the project is not in a 
flood plain. M. Ftizpatrick seconds. 
Motion carries 5-0 

13) will not have an adverse impact on spawning grounds, fish, aquatic life, bird or 
other wildlife habitat. 

COMPLETE 

A. Torregrossa moves to find that the project will not adversely affect wildlife habitat as it's a 
low impact project. M. Fitzpatrick seconds. 
Motion carries 5-0 

14) Will not cause noise, odor, glare, or vibration to disturb the peaceful enjoyment of 
adjacent property. 

COMPLETE 

A. Torregrossa moves to find that the project will not cause noise, odor, glare or vibration 
because it's adequately buffered and because of the noise ordinance. M. Woerter seconds. 
Motion carries 5-0 

15) Will not place an excessive burden on the ability of the Town to provide municipal, 
governmental or educational services. 

COMPLETE 

A. Torregrossa moves to find that the project will not place an excessive burden on the town 
because the campers will not have small children using the school system, nor will they be 
utilizing municipal services. M. Fitzpatrick seconds. 
Motion carries 5-0 

CAMPGROUND REQUIREMENTS 

A. Torregrossa moves to find that the project meets the campground requirements with the 
following conditions: 

• The project comply with Maine State Plumbing Codes and DHHS requirements, if any 
apply 

• The project comply with the time limits of operation in Article 6, Section A, Use Specific 
Performance Requirements for campgrounds 

J. Simoneau seconds. 
Motion carries 5-0 

APPLICATION CONDITIONS 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 31

geotheb1
Rectangle



A Torregrossa moves to approve the amended application with the following conditions: 

• The applicant, Durham Leisure Holdings LLC, show sufficient financial resources of at 
least $67,000 

• The applicant provide the LLC incorporation papers and certificate of good standing 
from the Secretary of state 

• The project comply with Maine State Plumbing Codes and DHHS requirements, if any 
apply 

• The project comply with the time limits of operation in Article 6, Section A, Use Specific 
Performance Requirements for campgrounds 

M. Fitzgerald seconds. 
Motion carries 5-0 

Signed by: 

Chairman 

Dated: J:). -- 7- ~ Q Jb 
~ l6-'i-30 ib 

A. ~Member -tS, y 

Member -----------

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 32

geotheb1
Rectangle



Ms. Allen also stated late last year she filed for a Declaratory Judgment with the Court, which 
seeks a ruling on the right-of-way/easement which was shortly after the Babcocks filed for a 
Declaratory Judgment on the same matter. She asserted that the Babcocks moved first for a 
Declaratory Judgment. 

Attorney Shane Wright stated the matter of both requests for Declaratory Judgments are 
currently in the discovery phase. Attorney Wright stated he also agreed with the Motion on 
the floor that there is nothing more that can currently be done and to close that loop at the 
Town level. Attorney Wright stated, for the record, that the creation of a back lot does not 
require a fifty foot right of way, but construction does. 

Attorney Wright asserted, for the record, that the construction on the back lot doesn't comply 
with the original or subsequent building permit and that construction took place after the 
Appeal was initiated and he questions the degree of good faith in having a valid permit in 
place. Attorney Wright reiterated he agrees, in general, with the Motion on the floor. 

Sheila Babcock stated she came in good faith and believed the permits were good. Ms. 
Babcock added that she came before the Planning Board previously for an Occupational 
permit to do her woodcuts and to have her farm there adding since 2011 she has done 
exactly just that. She added that the Jersey Barriers were placed there during a period which 
both she and her husband, Jerel were at the hospital. The placement of these barriers 
prevented a logger from transporting wood from their property. Mrs. Babcock continued that 
the logs had to be cut up into firewood. 

Mrs. Babcock added she has documents from the Fire Chief stating that fire equipment and 
an ambulance needs twenty (20') feet to pass and she has given copies of these documents 
to the appropriate parties. She added that since 1978, she and her husband maintained the 
right-of-way for Francis Babcock, now deceased. 

VOTE ON MOTION: 5-0, Unanimous. Alternate Paul First Abstains. 

Re: Durham Leisure Holdings. LLC - Request for a Variance for Two Additional 
Campsites and Length of Stay Allowed at Campsites - Kenneth and Gwenn Huot: 

Kenneth and Gwenn Huot personally appeared before the Appeals Board to request a 
Variance for two campsites which do not have a 100 foot setback from the adjoining property 
line. He stated this is a pie shaped piece which is 57 feet. The adjoining property use to 
house an old school and he asserted thaf this smalt piece of property may belong to the ...... 
Town. 

Babcock/Allen & DLC, LLC Appeal Hearings 11-22-2016 page 3 of 5 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 33



I 

l J 

Mr. Huot also requested that the length of stay for campers be increased from the two week 
limit, especially in the winter as the campers need to be skirted off to prevent freezing below. 
He asserted the campground was set up for year-round camping and the major portion of 
their clientelle are R.V. Campers. 

The Codes Official stated in October, 2016, the Huots requested to expand the existing 9 site 
campground to 34 sites, noting that two of the sites lacked the 100 foot setback requirement 
per the Ordinance. He stated the Planning Board approved 34 sites after the Huots amended 
their application from the original request. 

The Codes Official referred the Board to page 66 through 67, provision 3-K, which delineates 
a summer and winter the length of time one camper can occupy a particular site. The Codes 
Official pointed out the original Conditional Use Permit was granted for 100 campsites with 
the provision that any development that had not occurred in a timely fashion or any 
development abandoned would be vacated. He stated when the Houts purchased the 
campground, the State license had been brought down to 9 sites. 

The Huots are asking relief from the time constraints for camping asserting their campsite is 
not used for mobile homes. 

Gary Wood stated the Appeals Board is very limited as to what the Board can do when it 
comes to approving a Variance because the Appeals Board cannot re-write the Town's law. 
He continued the type of change the Huots are requesting requires an Article to come before 
the annual Town Meeting which indicates which performance standard they are asking be 
changes for a vote. 

He continued that the request for relief regarding the Huots' request regarding the setbacks is 
appropriate for the Appeals Board to consider. 

Mr. Huot stated the abutter appears to be Town owned property. The Huots were advised by 

Paul First to bring a request before the Selectmen to see if they would consider selling them 
this small piece of land which abuts the two campsites. If the Selectmen would consider the 
purchase, the Huots would have the 100 foot setback required by the Ordinance and would 
not need to get a Variance. Mrs. Huot stated that she has some paperwork which states the 
Town owned lot must be kept up. She asserted this has not been done as it is covered with 
junk and the barb wire fence has deteriorated into pieces. 

The Muots were advised that the next Selectman's meeting is Tuesday, November 29th 2016 
and that they should meet with AA/TA Glaeser to ask to be placed on the Agenda for that 
meeting. 

Babcock/Allen & DLC, LLC Appeal Hearings.11-22-2016 page 4 of 5 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 34

geotheb1
Rectangle



A lengthy discussion followed regarding how the the writing of Ordinances takes place as well 
as how they can be changed. 

Chairman Schneider explained to the Huots that a Variance request can be sought due to an 
undue hardship, by asserting that the lack of the 100 foot setback causes undue economic 
hardship as the Huots can't earn money on the rental of these two sites. 

Gary Wood concurred that proving an undue hardship is very difficult for the Appeals Board to 
decide. 

Terry Kirk wanted clarification of the lot lines as he questions why two lots only have 57 feet to 
the lot line, while the next campsite meets the 100 foot setback. During review of the plan, it 
was noted that the lot line does not run straight, but rather runs at an angle. 

It was the general consensus of the members that the Huots best and easiest course of 
action would first be to see whether the Selectmen would consider selling this small piece to 
them so they would meet the required setback for these two campsites. 

MOTION: Gary Wood Moves that the application for a Variance be denied and the reason 
for that is in order to grant it, the Appeals Board must determine whether the land can yield a 
reasonable return unless a Variance is Granted, and in this case, the application did not meet 
that standard because an established campground was already operating on that land. Dean 
Clark Second. 

Vote on Motion: 5-0, Unanimous. 

Adjournment: Terry Kirk Moves to Adjourn at 8:17 p.m. Gary Wood Second. Motion 
Carried 5-0. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jill S. Toher 
Meetings Secretary 

Babcock/Allen & DLC, LLCAppeai Hear:ings 11-22-2016 page 5 of 5 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 35



Durham Planning Board 
Conditional Use Permit - Campgrounds 

Application Checklist 

Name(s): Kenneth & Gwenn Huot. ___ _ Date: _ 4/5/17 _ _______ _ 

Map#:_2 __________ _ Lot#: _13 ________ _ 

Conditional Use Permit for: _re-open two campsites ___ _____ _ 

Campgrounds -

a. Campgrounds shall conform to the minimum requirements imposed under State licensing procedures 
and the following (in cases of possible conflict, the stricter shall apply): 

Motion: 
Torregrossa moves to find that this criteria is met as long as the applicant receives all applicable state 
licenses. J. Simoneau seconds. 
Motion carries 4-0-1 with J. Caplinger abstaining 

b. A campground must be constructed on at least 20 acres of land and all camping units or structures shall 
be located at least 1090 feet from any property Ii ne and at least 400 feet from any residence ( except 
residences belonging to the campground owners). 

Motion: 
A. Torregrossa moves to find that this criteria is complete with the condition that the applicant obtain 
ownership of the pie-shaped parcel to allow for 100-foot setbacks. J. Simoneau seconds. 
Motion carries 4-0-1 with J. Caplinger abstainrng 

c. Campsites (i.e. Sites where tents, recreation vehicles (RV's) are placed) shall be laid out and screened 
in such a manner that none are within view from public roads, navigable rivers, existing residences 
(including from the second floor windows thereof) or approved subdivision lots. Any combination of 
evergreen planting, landscaped earthen berms or solid fencing may be used to achieve this screening 
standard, when campsites would otherwise be visible from the locations described above. 

Motion: 
A. Torregrossa moves to find that this criteria is met because the project has sufficient vegetation and 
screening. J. Simoneau seconds. 
Motion carries 4-0-1 with J. Caplinger abstaining 

d. No overnight sleeping shall be allowed in vehicles except for Recreational Vehicles (and trailers). 

Motion: 
A. Torregrossa moves to find that this criteria is met with the condition that the applicant not allow any 
overnight sleeping in cars. J. Simoneau seconds. 
Motion carries 4-0-1 with J. Caplinger abstaining 

e. Tent sites and sites for recreational vehicles (RV's) shall be laid out so that the density of each 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 36



developed acre of land does not exceed 11 campsites per acre. 

Motion: 
A. Torregrossa moves to find that this criteria is met because the density is well above the requirement. J . 
Simoneau seconds. 
Motion carries 4-0-1 with J. Caplinger abstaining 

f. Campsites shall only be allowed on land defined as Moderate or Slight according to the County Soil 
Survey of the U.S.D.A. Soil Conservation Service. 

Motion: 
J. Simoneau moves to find that this criteria is met because the project is on previously developed land. A. 
Torregrossa seconds. 
Motion carries 4-0-1 with J. Caplinger abstaining 

h. The area intended for placement of the recreational vehicle, tent or shelter and utility service buildings, 
shall be set back a minimum of 250 feet from the normal high water mark or any pond or river. 

Motion: 
A. Torregrossa moves to find that this criteria is met because there is no pond or river within 250 feet. J. 
Simoneau seconds. 
Motion carries 4-0-1 with J. Caplinger abstaining 

1. Campsites intended for placement of a recreational vehicle, tent shelter or structure for human use will 
not be permitted in a Resource Protection Zone. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 5, a campground 
may conduct Non-Intensive Recreation Primitive Recreation, Open Space Uses in Resource Protection 
Zones, and may build Piers, Docks and Marinas as associated uses to the campground so long as those 
uses comply with the applicable requirements of this Ordinance. 

Motion: 
A. Torregrossa moves to find that this criteria is not applicable because the project is not in the Resource 
Protection Zone. J. Simoneau seconds. 
Motion carries 4-0-1 with J. Caplinger abstaining 

j. A campground shall provide water and sewerage systems, sanitary stations and convenience facilities in 
accordance with the regulations of the State Plumbing Code and the State of Maine Department of Human 
Services. In no case shall fewer than one toilet, lavatory and shower be provided for each sex for every ten 
(10) camping and tent sites. 

Motion: 
A. Torregrossa moves to find that this criteria is met with the condition that the project receive Department 
of Health and Human Services approval. J . Simoneau seconds. 
Motion carries 4~0-1 with J. Caplinger abstaining 

k. A time limit is placed on the occufancy of any one camping space on a continuing basis as followed: 
Twelve (12) weeks for the d May 15 to September 15th of each year, and two (2) weeks for all other times. 
Only camping units such as defined herein (plus a towing vehicle), shall be permitted within any camper 
park, temporarily or otherwise. 

Motion: 
A. Torregrossa moves to find that this criteria is met with the condition that the applicant adhere to the time 
limits. J. Simoneau seconds. 
Motion carries 4-0-1 with J. Caplinger abstaining 

I. Clearing within 250 feet of Runaround Pond, the East Branch of the Royal River, Chandler River, Gerrish 
Brook, Newell Brood, Meadow Brook, Dyer Brook or the Androscoggin River - clearing of trees and 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 37

geotheb1
Rectangle



converting to other vegetation is permitted for approved construction and landscaping. Where such clearing 
extends to the shoreline, a cleared opening or openings not greater than 30 feet in width for every 100 feet 
of shoreline (measured along the normal high water mark) may be created in the strip extending fifty (50) 
feet from the normal high water mark and paralleling the shoreline. Where natural vegetation that is 
equally effective in retarding erosion and preserving natural beauty. Adequate screening or Buffer Strips 
shall be built, planted or maintained to protect adjacent residences from adverse noise, light, dust, smoke 
and visual impact. 

Motion: 
A. Torregrossa moves to find that this criteria is not applicable because the project is not within 250 feet of 
these bodies of water. J. Simoneau seconds. 
Motion carries 4-0-1 with J. Caplinger abstaining 

Prepared by: _ Mindy Woerter--4--L!..!...~~+---=~;.i..!....l..c...-=. 
_4/20/17 _______ _ 

Date: 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 38



R
O

Y
A

L
S

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 R

D

R
O

U
TE

 1
36

CUSHING RD

PENNEY LN

P

BROWN RD

R
O

U
T
E
 9

GRANT RD

FR
EE

P
O

R
T

D
U

R
H

A
M

POWNAL

SITE

RABBIT RD QUAKER MEETING HOUSE RD

DURHAM

R
O

U
T

E
 1

2
5

MAIN-LAND
Development

Consultants, Inc.

DURHAM LEISURE
CAMPGROUND

DURHAM LEISURE
HOLDINGS, LLC

DURHAM LEISURE
CAMPGROUND

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 17

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 39



8/28/23, 11:11 AM Mail - George Thebarge - Outlook

Re: Fw: Leisure Campground expansion

Gwenn Huot <dlcampground@gmail.com>
Mon 8/28/2023 11:07 AM

To:George Thebarge <townplanner@durhammaine.gov>

1 attachments (5 MB)
Image_20230828_0002.pdf;

   Town ordinance for (campgrounds) is May 15th to September 15th, 2 weeks any other time.  We are 
an RV park & are looking to accommodate longer term stays.  We have 9 existing winter sites. We are 
proposing an additional 21 sites to put campers & RV units on extending length of stay to 6 months. 
   Summer sites are from May 15th - September 15th.  We would like to extend the summer sites from 
April 1st to October 31st.  All units not owned by RV park will be insured & registered at their primary 
residence [ which is not our RVpark].  All RV certified units owned by our RV park will be considered 
personal property of the park therefore taxed under personal property.. Still looking for MDOT.  Van  
said he was on it. Thinking some time tue or  wed.  

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 40



PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 41



PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 42



PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 43



PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 44



PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 45



PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 46



PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 47



PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 48



PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 49



PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 50



PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 51



8/28/23, 11:37 AM Mail - George Thebarge - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkADAwYmZmYzQ4LTc4MmQtNDJjZC1hMGQ3LTE0N2EwOThhYzMyMwAQAELKB%2Fzv9aZAkttE0gPn… 1/1

Expansion

Gwenn Huot <dlcampground@gmail.com>
Mon 8/28/2023 11:27 AM

To:George Thebarge <townplanner@durhammaine.gov>

1 attachments (3 MB)
IMG_20230828_105315437.jpg;

All winter proposed, and summer sites are color coded. Water lines septic and electric. All water lines
will be interconnected with existing RV Park. With 2000 gallon reserve tank with Fire department hook
up. 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 52



8/28/23, 11:35 AM Mail - George Thebarge - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkADAwYmZmYzQ4LTc4MmQtNDJjZC1hMGQ3LTE0N2EwOThhYzMyMwAQAELKB%2Fzv9aZAkttE0gPn… 1/1

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 53



TOWN OF DURHAM 
630 Hallowell Road 
Durham, Maine 04222 
 
Office of Code Enforcement               Tel. (207) 376-6558 
and Planning     Fax: (207) 353-5367 
 

  
 
 

CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL DECISION 
FINDING OF FACTS 

Approved __________________ 
 
PROJECT NAME:  Leisure Campground Expansion  
 
Section 7.4 CONDITIONAL USE REVIEW CRITERIA 
 
A. Review Criteria:  Before it issues a conditional use permit, the Planning Board shall find, as 

a matter of fact, that the proposed use meets the following criteria: 
 

1. Public Health Impacts: The proposed use will not create unsanitary or unhealthful 
conditions by reason of sewage disposal, emissions to the air or water, or other aspects of 
its design or operation. 

 
a. All RV sites will be provided with sewer hookups. 
b. The applicant will construct a sewer collection piping system that will deliver wastewater 

from the new RV sites to five one wastewater disposal fields each serving between 22 and 
24 40 sites. (Existing Conditions Plan dated 8-15-2023). 

c. The applicant submitted a preliminary site evaluation by Stewart’s Soil & Septic verifying 
that soils are adequate to support the proposed wastewater disposal system. 

d. The preliminary site evaluation indicated a limit of 22 to 24 campsites per septic disposal 
field to stay below the limits for an engineered system. 

e. The preliminary site evaluation shows 300-foot well exclusion zones required for the 
common wells used by the campground. 
The applicant’s submissions are inconsistent as to whether septic treatment fields will be 
in well exclusion zones. 

f. The applicant submitted a hand-drawn layout of the sewer conveyance lines to the septic 
fields. 

g. The applicant submitted a hand-drawn layout of the water distribution system. 
h. The applicant submitted a communication from Scott P Temple documenting a flow test 

on a drilled well in 2016 that produced 28,800 gallons per day. 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 54



i. The applicant submitted an HHE 606 State of Maine Health Inspection Program License
Application for Campground & Event Camping for “41 or more RV sites in an existing 
RV park."

Motion made by ______________________: The applicant has (or has not) satisfied a 
reasonable burden of proof of compliance with the criterion for public health impacts. 
Motion seconded by ______________________: 
Votes to approve: ____ Votes to deny:____ 

2. Traffic Safety Impacts: The proposed use will not create unsafe vehicular or pedestrian
traffic conditions when added to existing and foreseeable traffic in its vicinity.

Findings:

a. The applicant submitted an email from Tony Fontaine of the Maine Department of
Transportation stating that MDOT has no record of an Entrance Permit being issued for
the location.

b. The email further indicates that the entrance is “grandfathered” per MDOT Access
Management regulations as long as there is no change in use.

c. The email goes on to state that the entrance predates MDOT regulations that went into
effect in May of 2002 and no permit review would be needed to expand its use.

d. The entrance is located on Route 136, a State Highway that has regular traffic as well as
trucking traffic.

e. The applicant has stated that there would be a slow increase in traffic due to the phasing
and seasonal nature of the use.

f. The applicant has provided no details on the internal circulation drives in terms of widths
or directions of travel lanes or on pedestrian facilities.

Motion made by ______________________: The applicant has (or has not) satisfied a 
reasonable burden of proof of compliance with the criterion for traffic safety impacts. 
Motion seconded by ______________________: 
Votes to approve: ____ Votes to deny:____ 

3. Public Safety Impacts: The proposed use will not create public safety problems which
would be substantially different from those created by existing uses in the neighborhood
or require a substantially greater degree of municipal services than existing uses in the
neighborhood.

Findings:

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 55



a.  The applicant has stated that no school enrollment will be generated by the project.  
b. The applicant has stated that no buildings are associated with the expansion that 

would require fire protection. 
c. The applicant doesn’t foresee any need for increased law enforcement. 
d. The applicant has provided no information as to the proposed internal drive system to 

verify access for Public Safety vehicles. 
e. There is an existing transmission tower on the property and the applicant has 

provided documents indicating easements exist for that use. 
The applicant has not provided information as to whether the presence of the tower 
will present any safety issues for RV park residents in terms of fall zones from the 
tower or access to the tower by unauthorized personnel. 

f. The updated Existing Conditions Plan (8-15-2023) shows a fall zone of 179-foot 
radius from the tower base.  Five existing campsites are just within the fall zone while 
no new campsites are in the fall zone. 

g. In an email dated 8-28-2023 the applicant stated that a 2000-gallon water reserve tank 
will have a Fire Department hookup. 

h. The applicant submitted a diagram showing existing street addresses and a numbering 
schematic for the existing and proposed campsites. 

 
Motion made by ______________________: The applicant has (or has not) satisfied a 
reasonable burden of proof of compliance with the criterion for public safety impacts. 
Motion seconded by ______________________: 
Votes to approve: ____ Votes to deny:____ 

 
4. Environmental Impacts: The proposed use will not result in sedimentation or erosion or 

have an adverse effect on water supplies. 
 
Findings: 
 
a. The applicant has submitted a Wetland, Stream, and Cursory Vernal Pool Delineation 

Report performed by Main-Land Development Consultants, Inc. 
b. That report indicates that no significant vernal pools or potential vernal pools exist on 

the site. 
c. The report indicates that no streams are on the site. 
d. The report indicates the presence of a small vernal pool of just under 2000 sq. ft. that 

appears to be a man-made pond located between Route 136 and the gravel access 
road near the front of the property. 

e. The Existing Conditions Plan shows a much larger wetland system located between 
the transmission tower and the proposed expansion that is not mentioned in the report. 

f. The applicant has stated that all sites are wooded and minimal clearing of trees will 
occur. 

g. The applicant has stated that future sites and roads will be built off existing logging 
roads. 

 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 56



Motion made by ______________________: The applicant has (or has not) satisfied a 
reasonable burden of proof of compliance with the criterion for environmental impacts. 
Motion seconded by ______________________: 
Votes to approve: ____ Votes to deny:____ 

 
5. Scale & Intensity of Use: The proposed use will be compatible with existing uses in the 

neighborhood, with respect to physical size, visual impact, intensity of use, and proximity 
to other structures. 
 
Findings: 
 
a. The applicant has stated that the area is characterized by residential homes, home 

businesses, commercial businesses and farms. 
b. The applicant has stated that the nearest house is 400 feet away. It is not clear if that 

distance is from the property line, the existing RV park, or the proposed expansion. 
c. The applicant has stated that all RVs will be screened by the natural landscape. 
d. The applicant has stated that from 400 of 100 feet minimum from property line. 
e. The applicant refers to a Google map submitted with the application. 

 
Motion made by ______________________: The applicant has (or has not) satisfied a 
reasonable burden of proof of compliance with the criterion for scale and intensity of use. 
Motion seconded by ______________________: 
Votes to approve: ____ Votes to deny:____ 

 
6. Noise & Hours of Operation: The proposed use will be compatible with existing uses in 

the neighborhood, with respect to the generation of noise and hours of operation. 
 
Findings: 
 

a. The applicant has stated that office hours are 9:00 to 9:00. 
b. The applicant has stated that pool hours are 9:00 to dusk. 
c. The applicant has stated that quiet time is 10:00 pm to 7:00 am. 
d. The applicant has stated that the occupants are mostly seasonal workers and are very 

quiet. 
e. The applicant has stated that there is no tenting. 

 

Motion made by ______________________: The applicant has (or has not) satisfied a 
reasonable burden of proof of compliance with the criterion for noise & hours of operation. 
Motion seconded by ______________________: 
Votes to approve: ____ Votes to deny:____ 

 
7. Right, Title, or Interest: The applicant has sufficient right, title or interest in the site of 

the proposed use to be able to carry out the proposed use. 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 57



 
Findings: 
 
a. The applicant submitted an Agent’s Certificate identifying Kenneth P. Huot and 

Gwenn M. Huot as company members of Durham Leisure Holdings LLC. 
b. The applicant submitted a 2016 annual filing report with the Maine Secretary of State 

characterizing Durham Leisure Holdings LLC as a land holding company. 
c. The applicant submitted a deed of transfer from the estate of Harold Cochrane to 

Durham Leisure Holdings LLC. 
d. The applicant submitted two exhibits for a communications and access and utility 

easements along with a map showing access to the transmission tower. 
e. The applicant submitted a corporate filing report for 2022. 

 
Motion made by ______________________: The applicant has (or has not) satisfied a 
reasonable burden of proof of compliance with the criterion for right, title, or interest. 
Motion seconded by ______________________: 
Votes to approve: ____ Votes to deny:____ 

 
 

8. Financial & Technical Ability: The applicant has the financial and technical ability to 
meet the standards of this Section and to comply with any conditions imposed by the 
Planning Board pursuant to subsection 7.5. 
 
Findings: 
 
a. The applicant stated that the project is estimated to cost $700,000 +/- and the project 

will be financed from personal savings.  
b. The applicant submitted a letter from Bangor Savings Bank stating that the applicant 

has deposit accounts in excess of $675,000. 
c. The applicant submitted a receipt from the International Brotherhood of Electrical 

Workers. 
d. The applicant submitted a hand drawn electrical distribution system. 
e. The applicant submitted a campground license from the Maine Department of Health 

and Human Services. 
f. The applicant stated he is using Main-Land Development as a consultant. 

 

Motion made by ______________________: The applicant has (or has not) satisfied a 
reasonable burden of proof of compliance with the criterion for financial & technical ability. 
Motion seconded by ______________________: 
Votes to approve: ____ Votes to deny:____ 

 
 
 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 58



Section 7.5  CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
A. Planning Board Approval Conditions:  Upon consideration of the criteria listed in 

subsection 7.4, the Planning Board may by majority vote attach such conditions, in 
addition to those required by other provisions of this Ordinance, as it finds necessary to 
ensure compliance with those criteria and all other applicable requirements of this 
Ordinance. Violation of any of those conditions shall be a violation of this Ordinance. 

 
Motion made by ______________________: To apply the following conditions of approval 
to the permit for conditional use. 
Motion seconded by ______________________: 
Votes to approve: ____ Votes to deny:____ 

 
1. No construction to commence until the applicant has applied for and received Planning 

Board site plan approval for the project infrastructure. 
2. The project shall comply with all DHHS requirements for wastewater disposal, public 

water systems, and campgrounds. 
3. The project must comply with all the requirements of Section 5.8 A. through I. for 

campgrounds. 
4. Sites 1 through 37 are approved for year-round RV and Park Model RV use and the cabin 

at 33 Leisure Lane is approved for year-round use. 
5. Sites 38 through 77 are approved for seasonal use from April 1st through October 31st. 
6. Pool hours are 9:00 to dusk. 
7. Quiet time is 10:00 pm to 7:00 am. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 59



 
6. New Business: 

a. Subdivision Sketch Plan Review for 4 Additional Lots, Ruby Farmview 
Subdivision, Map 5, Lot 78B (Public comment will not be taken) 

 
• The applicant is seeking sketch plan review of a four-lot expansion of the 

existing subdivision. 

• Sketch plan review is an opportunity for the applicant and Board to informally 
discuss pursuit of a subdivision development plan on the subject property. 

• General information related to the property in question is provided to have an 
informed discussion. 

• The main purpose is to ensure that the applicant and Board are “on the same 
page” in terms of ordinance requirements and the subdivision review process. 

• The meeting also provides opportunities to flag key issues that will come up 
during a future application process. 

• Sketch plan review is also an opportunity to explore any intention of the 
applicant to request any waivers of procedures, submissions, or performance 
standards and general reasons for doing so. 

• No notice to abutting property owners is required at this informal stage of the 
subdivision review process. 

• No decisions, whether express or implied can be made at this stage of the 
review process. 

• The Ruby Farmview Subdivision was approved on December 5, 2018 and was 
amended in May of 2021. 

• Under Title 38, § 482, if the applicant creates 15 or more lots in any 5-year 
period, a site location permit from the Maine DEP will be required. 

• If the applicant pursues development of the four new lots before December 5 of 
2023, they will need a site location permit. 

• The applicant should be aware of new procedural forms and administrative 
provisions being used by the Planning Board and staff. 

 
  

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 60



RUBY LANE
EXTENSION

RUBY

LA
NE

LOT 3
114,198 S.F.

2.62 Ac.

LOT 1
92,899 S.F.

2.13 Ac.

LOT 4
119,545 S.F.

2.74 Ac.

LOT 2
98,365 S.F.

2.26 Ac.

BUILDABLE 1
40,056 S.F.

0.92 Ac.

BUILDABLE 3
56,756 S.F.

1.30 Ac.

BUILDABLE 4
57,278 S.F.

1.31 Ac.

BUILDABLE 2
47,504 S.F.

1.09 Ac.

RUBY LANE
EXTENSION

PC
: 3

+6
2.

87

PT
: 4

+6
6.

64

-0+25 0+00
1+00

2+00
3+00

4+00

5+00

6+00

7+007+03

(IN FEET)
1 INCH =        FT.

0
GRAPHIC SCALE

1005050 25

50

N

GRID

NORTH

 N
O

.
D

AT
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

PR
O

JE
C

T:

C
LI

EN
T:

SHEET:

SCALE:
JOB NO:

SH
EE

T 
TI

TL
E:

DATE:

PERMIT DRAWING
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

C
:\O

D
\T

er
ra

dy
n 

C
on

su
lta

nt
s\

Pr
oj

ec
t F

ol
de

rs
 - 

D
oc

um
en

ts
\2

02
3 

Jo
bs

\2
3-

03
0 

R
ub

y 
Fa

rm
 V

ie
w

 S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 P
ha

se
 2

\C
AD

\P
er

m
itt

in
g\

23
-0

30
 B

.d
w

g

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
| L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
in

g 
| G

eo
m

at
ic

s
St

or
m

w
at

er
 D

es
ig

n 
| L

an
d 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 | 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l P

er
m

itt
in

g

DATE: 07-19-2023

R
U

BY
 F

AR
M

 S
U

BD
IV

IS
IO

N
 P

H
AS

E 
2

23-030
1" = 50'

R
U

BY
 L

AN
E,

 D
U

R
H

AM
, M

AI
N

E

C
O

N
C

EP
T 

PL
AN

C-1.0

D
U

R
H

AM
, M

AI
N

E 
04

22
2

C
O

PP
 E

XC
AV

AT
IN

G
, I

N
C

.
19

0 
PI

N
KH

AM
 B

R
O

O
K 

R
O

AD

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 33

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 61



July 20, 2023 23-030 
 
 
Mr. George Thebarge, Town Planner 
Town of Durham 
630 Hallowell Road 
Durham, ME 04222 
 
Subdivision Sketch Plan Review, Ruby Farmview Subdivision 
Tax Map 5, Lot 78-B, Michael Copp 
 
Dear George: 
 
On behalf of the applicant, Michael Copp, we are pleased to submit a Subdivision Sketch Plan 
Review application for an amendment to the Ruby Farmview Subdivision, located off Swamp 
Road. The original subdivision was approved in November 2017 and included approximately 10.6 
acres of contiguous land retained by the applicant. 
 
The proposed amendment will consist of construction of approximately 700 feet of new roadway, 
terminating with a hammerhead turnaround. The net residential calculation for the retained parcel 
supports the creation of four (4) new lots. The proposed configuration of the new road & four lots 
provides the required frontage, required lot area and required contiguous buildable area for each 
lot.  
 
We look forward to presenting this project to the Planning Board at their next available meeting. 
In the interim, please let me know if you have any questions or require additional information to 
consider the subdivision sketch plan review application complete. 
 
Sincerely, 
TERRADYN CONSULTANTS, LLC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Richard Meek, P.E. 
Sr. Project Engineer 
 
cc: Michael Copp 
 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 62



TOWN OF DURHAM 
630 Hallowell Road 
Durham, Maine 04222 

Office of Code Enforcement               Tel. (207) 376-6558 
and Planning Fax: (207) 353-5367 

SUBDIVISION SKETCH PLAN REVIEW  
APPLICATION AND CHECKLIST  

A. Owner & Developer

Is applicant owner of the property? ______YES _____NO (If no, letter of owner authorization is required) 

Property owner: _______________________________Property developer: ________________________ 

Address   __________________________________    Address: ________________________________ 

   __________________________________          __________________________________ 

   __________________________________          __________________________________ 

Telephone number:__________________________ Telephone number: ______________________ 

Email address: _____________________________ Email address: __________________________ 

B. General Property Information

Property location:  _____________________________________________________________________ 

Tax Map/Lot numbers:  _________________________________________________________________ 

Current zoning:  ______________________________________________________________________ 

Is all of the property being considered for development? ______ YES ______ NO 

C. Development Information

Name of proposed development:  _________________________________________________________ 

Number of proposed lots:______________________  Acreage of parcel to be developed: ____________ 

When is construction being considered (year & season)? ______________________________________ 

*SUBMISSIONS CHECKLIST ON REVERSE SIDE*

X

X

Michael Copp Same

190 Pinkham Brook Road

Durham, ME 04222

Same

207-576-0652

Same

Same

coppms@aol.com

Ruby Lane

Map 5, Lot 78-B

Rural Residential & Agricultural District (RRA)

Ruby Farmview Subdivision

4 (new) 10.6

Spring 2024

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 63



D. Submissions Checklist

 

This sketch plan application form; 

A copy of a portion of the USGS topographic map of the area showing the outline of the 
proposed subdivision; 

A copy of that portion of the Androscoggin County Soil Survey covering the proposed 
subdivision, showing the outline of the proposed subdivision; 

A copy of the relevant Assessor’s Map(s) showing the outline of the proposed subdivision; 

A map drawn to scale showing site conditions such as steep slopes, wet areas and vegetative 
cover in a general manner. 

A map drawn to scale showing the proposed layout of streets, lots, buildings, other 
improvements, and any proposed common areas in relation to existing conditions; and, 

A written project narrative report with general information to describe or outline the existing 
conditions of the site, development constraints and opportunities, and a full description of the 
proposed development.   

Will this be a cluster subdivision under Section 6.33? _______ YES ______ NO 

E. Cluster subdivision additional requirements:

The sketch plan submission includes a conceptual site plan meeting the requirements of 
Section 6.33.B.1. 

Each specific home site is shown on the site plan to be an element of an overall plan for site 
development.  

The conceptual site plan illustrates the placement of buildings and their relationship to open 
spaces, pedestrian paths, and roads.   

The conceptual site plan illustrates where open space will serve the multiple purposes of: 

Preserving natural features of the land; 

Providing recreational opportunities; and, 

Maximizing the value and enjoyment of homes in the subdivision.   

X

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

X

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 64



 

Section 6.5 PRE-APPLICATION SKETCH PLAN PHASE 
A. Purpose:  The purpose of the sketch plan meeting and onsite inspection is for the 

applicant to present general information regarding a contemplated subdivision to the 
Board and receive the Board’s comments prior to the expenditure of substantial sums of 
money on surveying, soils identification, and engineering by the applicant. 

B. Procedure:  The applicant shall present the pre-application sketch Plan and make a 
verbal presentation regarding the site and the proposed subdivision.  Following the 
applicant’s presentation, the Board may ask questions, point out potential problems or 
issues for future discussions, and make suggestions to be incorporated by the applicant 
into the subsequent application. Substantive, lengthy discussions about compliance with 
review standards shall be postponed until the subsequent review of the full application.  
The applicant should state any anticipated requests for waiver of submissions and the 
justification for requesting them.  As with determination of compliance with review 
standards, any formal decision on granting waivers of submission requirements must wait 
until Board formal action on a preliminary plan application.   

C. Sketch Plan Submissions:  Ten (10) copies of the sketch plan and all supporting 
materials must be submitted fourteen (14) days prior to a regularly scheduled Planning 
Board meeting, in order to be placed on the Board’s agenda. The sketch plan does not 
need to be prepared by a registered professional engineer but must be accurate and 
contain all the following information submittals to help the Board and applicant fully 
understand the project site and issues related to it: 

1. A sketch plan application form; 
2. A copy of a portion of the USGS topographic map of the area showing the outline of 

the proposed subdivision; 
3. A copy of that portion of the Androscoggin County Soil Survey covering the 

proposed subdivision, showing the outline of the proposed subdivision; 
4. A copy of the relevant Assessor’s Map(s) showing the outline of the proposed 

subdivision; 
5. A map drawn to scale showing site conditions such as steep slopes, wet areas and 

vegetative cover in a general manner. 
6. A map drawn to scale showing the proposed layout of streets, lots, buildings, other 

improvements, and any proposed common areas in relation to existing conditions; 
and, 

7. A written project narrative report with general information to describe or outline the 
existing conditions of the site, development constraints and opportunities, and a full 
description of the proposed development.   

D. Site Plan Required for Cluster Subdivisions:  If the applicant intends to file a request 
for approval of a cluster subdivision plan under Section 6.33, a conceptual site plan 
meeting the requirements of Section 6.33.B.1 must be submitted at sketch plan review.  
The Planning Board will conduct a site walk for cluster subdivisions at pre-application 
stage following the requirements of Section 6.6.I.  

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 65



 

Section 6.1. CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT ALTERNATIVE 
A. Purpose of Clustering: The purpose of these provisions is to allow for flexibility in the 

design of subdivisions to allow for the creation of open space which provides recreational 
opportunities or protects important natural features from the adverse impacts of 
development, provided that the net residential density shall be no greater than is 
permitted in the district in which the development is proposed. Notwithstanding 
provisions of Article 4 relating to dimensional requirements, the Board, in reviewing and 
approving proposed residential subdivisions, may modify the provisions related to 
dimensional requirements to permit flexibility in approaches to housing and 
environmental design in accordance with the following guidelines. This shall not be 
construed as granting variances to relieve hardship, and action of the Zoning Board of 
Appeals shall not be required.  

B. Standards for Cluster Developments:  Cluster developments shall meet all of the 
following requirements: 

1.  Required Site Plan:  Each home site shall be an element of an overall plan for site 
development. Only developments having a total site plan for specific home sites will 
be considered. The application shall illustrate the placement of buildings and their 
relationship to open spaces, pedestrian paths, and roads.  Although reduced road and 
utility construction costs are a benefit of clustering, of equal importance is designing 
a subdivision where open space serves the multiple purposes of preserving natural 
features of the land and providing recreational opportunities while maximizing the 
value and enjoyment of homes in the subdivision.  Although not a requirement, 
applicants seeking approval of a cluster subdivision are advised to seek the services 
of a landscape architect in laying out the site plan before engineering plans for roads 
are prepared and before a surveyor lays out proposed lot lines.  This site plan should 
be presented at the pre-application, sketch plan stage if cluster approval is desired.  
The Planning Board will not approve a cluster subdivision that creates open space 
from left over land or strips that do not positively relate to natural features of the site 
and do not orient home sites to take maximum advantage of those open spaces.  
Cluster approval is optional and should only be pursued to create true open space 
subdivisions. 

2.  Allowable Reduction of Lot Size & Street Frontage: The Planning Board may 
allow lots within cluster developments to be reduced in lot size and street frontage 
by up to fifty (50%) percent of the minimum required by Article 4 in return for 
provision of common open space, as long as the maximum number of dwelling units 
is not exceeded according to the calculations in Section 6.33.B.3 below. 

3.  Maximum Number of Lots:  In order to determine the maximum number of lots 
permitted in a cluster subdivision on a tract of land, the net residential acreage as 
determined in Section 6.33.B.4 below shall be divided by the minimum lot size in 
the district, as required by Article 4.  Recognizing the substantial community 
benefits of open space preservation, the Planning Board and these regulations 
acknowledge that the greater efficiency of cluster design may result in a slight 
increase in the number of lots over a conventional subdivision layout.  Any cluster 
subdivision meeting the net residential acreage, cluster design, and all other 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 66



Sketch Plan Review Application & Checklist 
 

 
Planning Board                    Page 5 
 

subdivision standards shall be deemed to be the functional equivalent of a 
conventional subdivision design in terms of neighborhood and community impact, 
and no further documentation shall be required to establish that equity. 

4.  Net Residential Acreage:  The net residential acreage shall be calculated by taking 
the total area of the lot and subtracting, in order, the following: 

a. Fifteen (15%) percent of the area of the tract for roads and easements. 
b. Portions of the tract shown on the Flood Boundary and Floodway Map 

prepared by the Federal Emergency Management Administration for 
Durham. 

c. Portions of the lot which are unsuitable for development in their natural 
state due to topographical, drainage or subsoil conditions such as, but not 
limited to: 

1)  Slopes greater than twenty (20%) percent; 
2)  Wetland soils; 
3)  Portions of the tract subject to existing easements; 
4)  Portions of the tract located in the Resource Protection District; and, 
5)  Portions of the tract covered by surface waters. 

5.  Required Open Space:  The total area of reserved open space within the 
development shall equal or exceed the sum of the areas by which any building lots 
are reduced below the minimum lot area normally required by Article 4. However, at 
least fifty (50%) percent of the area of the entire parcel or tract shall be included as 
common open space. Common open space shall not include road rights of way. No 
more than fifty (50%) percent of the common open space shall consist of wetlands. 

6.  Shore Frontage:  Shore frontage for each lot shall not be reduced below the 
minimum normally required by shoreland zoning. 

7.  Shoreline Access:  Where a cluster development abuts a body of water, a usable 
portion of the shoreline, as well as reasonable access to it, shall be a part of the 
common land. 

8.  Suitable Building Sites: No building site in the cluster development shall be 
located on slopes steeper than twenty (20%), within one hundred (100’) feet of any 
water body or fifty (50’) feet of any wetland, or on soil classified as being very 
poorly drained. 

9.  Common Open Space Management: The common open space shall be owned and 
managed according to the standards of Section 6.32. 

 
 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 67



SHEET

23-030 1

1190 PINKHAM BROOK ROAD
MICHAEL COPP

DURHAM, MAINE 04222

OF

PROJECT NO.

DATE

SCALE
4/18/2023

1"=2,000'

PROJECT:

PREPARED FOR:

207.926.5111 Ÿ info@terradynconsultants.com Ÿ www.terradynconsultants.com

PINELAND
41 CAMPUS DRIVE, SUITE 301
NEW GLOUCESTER, ME 04260

PORTLAND
565 CONGRESS STREET, SUITE 201
PORTLAND, ME 04101

RUBY FARM SUBDIVISION PHASE 2
DURHAM, MAINE

USGS QUADRANGLE MAP

SITE LOCATION

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 68



Hydrologic Soil Group—Androscoggin and Sagadahoc Counties, Maine

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

5/24/2023
Page 1 of 4

48
69

20
0

48
69

30
0

48
69

40
0

48
69

50
0

48
69

60
0

48
69

70
0

48
69

80
0

48
69

90
0

48
70

00
0

48
70

10
0

48
70

20
0

48
70

30
0

48
69

20
0

48
69

30
0

48
69

40
0

48
69

50
0

48
69

60
0

48
69

70
0

48
69

80
0

48
69

90
0

48
70

00
0

48
70

10
0

48
70

20
0

48
70

30
0

412700 412800 412900 413000 413100 413200 413300 413400 413500

412700 412800 412900 413000 413100 413200 413300 413400 413500

43°  58' 52'' N
70

° 
 5

' 2
1'

' W
43°  58' 52'' N

70
° 
 4

' 4
0'

' W

43°  58' 13'' N

70
° 
 5

' 2
1'
' W

43°  58' 13'' N

70
° 
 4

' 4
0'
' W

N

Map projection: Web Mercator   Corner coordinates: WGS84   Edge tics: UTM Zone 19N WGS84
0 250 500 1000 1500

Feet
0 50 100 200 300

Meters
Map Scale: 1:5,810 if printed on A portrait (8.5" x 11") sheet.

Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 69



MAP LEGEND MAP INFORMATION

Area of Interest (AOI)
Area of Interest (AOI)

Soils
Soil Rating Polygons

A

A/D

B

B/D

C

C/D

D

Not rated or not available

Soil Rating Lines
A

A/D

B

B/D

C

C/D

D

Not rated or not available

Soil Rating Points
A

A/D

B

B/D

C

C/D

D

Not rated or not available

Water Features
Streams and Canals

Transportation
Rails

Interstate Highways

US Routes

Major Roads

Local Roads

Background
Aerial Photography

The soil surveys that comprise your AOI were mapped at 
1:15,800.

Warning: Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.

Enlargement of maps beyond the scale of mapping can cause 
misunderstanding of the detail of mapping and accuracy of soil 
line placement. The maps do not show the small areas of 
contrasting soils that could have been shown at a more detailed 
scale.

Please rely on the bar scale on each map sheet for map 
measurements.

Source of Map: Natural Resources Conservation Service
Web Soil Survey URL: 
Coordinate System: Web Mercator (EPSG:3857)

Maps from the Web Soil Survey are based on the Web Mercator 
projection, which preserves direction and shape but distorts 
distance and area. A projection that preserves area, such as the 
Albers equal-area conic projection, should be used if more 
accurate calculations of distance or area are required.

This product is generated from the USDA-NRCS certified data as 
of the version date(s) listed below.

Soil Survey Area: Androscoggin and Sagadahoc Counties, 
Maine
Survey Area Data: Version 23, Aug 30, 2022

Soil map units are labeled (as space allows) for map scales 
1:50,000 or larger.

Date(s) aerial images were photographed: Jun 19, 2020—Sep 
20, 2020

The orthophoto or other base map on which the soil lines were 
compiled and digitized probably differs from the background 
imagery displayed on these maps. As a result, some minor 
shifting of map unit boundaries may be evident.

Hydrologic Soil Group—Androscoggin and Sagadahoc Counties, Maine

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

5/24/2023
Page 2 of 4

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 70



Hydrologic Soil Group

Map unit symbol Map unit name Rating Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

AaB Adams loamy sand, 0 to 
8 percent slopes

A 23.8 28.2%

AaC Adams loamy sand, 8 to 
15 percent slopes

A 7.4 8.8%

BgB Nicholville very fine 
sandy loam, 0 to 8 
percent slopes

C 2.4 2.8%

MeB Melrose fine sandy 
loam, 0 to 8 percent 
slopes

C 4.0 4.7%

MkC2 Merrimac fine sandy 
loam, 8 to 15 percent 
slopes, eroded

A 2.6 3.1%

NgB Ninigret fine sandy 
loam, 0 to 8 percent 
slopes

C 5.9 7.0%

Pa Peat and Muck A/D 5.6 6.7%

So Scarboro fine sandy 
loam

A/D 0.4 0.5%

Wa Walpole fine sandy loam A/D 32.2 38.2%

Totals for Area of Interest 84.2 100.0%

Hydrologic Soil Group—Androscoggin and Sagadahoc Counties, Maine

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

5/24/2023
Page 3 of 4

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 71



Description

Hydrologic soil groups are based on estimates of runoff potential. Soils are 
assigned to one of four groups according to the rate of water infiltration when the 
soils are not protected by vegetation, are thoroughly wet, and receive 
precipitation from long-duration storms.

The soils in the United States are assigned to four groups (A, B, C, and D) and 
three dual classes (A/D, B/D, and C/D). The groups are defined as follows:

Group A. Soils having a high infiltration rate (low runoff potential) when 
thoroughly wet. These consist mainly of deep, well drained to excessively 
drained sands or gravelly sands. These soils have a high rate of water 
transmission.

Group B. Soils having a moderate infiltration rate when thoroughly wet. These 
consist chiefly of moderately deep or deep, moderately well drained or well 
drained soils that have moderately fine texture to moderately coarse texture. 
These soils have a moderate rate of water transmission.

Group C. Soils having a slow infiltration rate when thoroughly wet. These consist 
chiefly of soils having a layer that impedes the downward movement of water or 
soils of moderately fine texture or fine texture. These soils have a slow rate of 
water transmission.

Group D. Soils having a very slow infiltration rate (high runoff potential) when 
thoroughly wet. These consist chiefly of clays that have a high shrink-swell 
potential, soils that have a high water table, soils that have a claypan or clay 
layer at or near the surface, and soils that are shallow over nearly impervious 
material. These soils have a very slow rate of water transmission.

If a soil is assigned to a dual hydrologic group (A/D, B/D, or C/D), the first letter is 
for drained areas and the second is for undrained areas. Only the soils that in 
their natural condition are in group D are assigned to dual classes.

Rating Options

Aggregation Method: Dominant Condition

Component Percent Cutoff: None Specified 

Tie-break Rule: Higher

Hydrologic Soil Group—Androscoggin and Sagadahoc Counties, Maine

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

5/24/2023
Page 4 of 4

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 72



PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 67

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 73



 
Project Narrative 

 
 
The parcel proposed for development consists of land retained by the owner, Michael Copp, as 
part of the subdivision of land to create Ruby Farmview Subdivision. Ruby Farmview Subdivision 
was approved in November 2017. The retained parcel includes approximately 10.6 acres of land, 
is identified as Lot 78-B on Tax Map 5 and includes approximately 718 feet of frontage on Ruby 
Lane.  
 
The parcel is primarily wooded with small clearings associated with former gravel extraction 
activity (based upon Google imagery the activity occurred prior to 1998). The parcel includes 
large areas of interconnected wetlands with drainage culverts connecting portions of the 
wetlands at two separate locations. The existing on-site slopes are generally flat to moderate 
(0%-15%). There are isolated locations of steep slopes (greater than 15%). Based upon a Web Soil 
Survey of the area, upland soils on site consists of Adams and Nicholville, a loamy sand and very 
fine sandy loam, respectively. Wetland areas consist of Walpole, a fine sandy loam. 
 
The proposed development will consist of construction of approximately 700 feet of new 
roadway, terminating with a hammerhead turnaround.  The proposed roadway will cross the 
existing wetlands at one location impacting approximately 4,500 square feet. The net residential 
calculation for this parcel supports creation of four (4) new lots. The proposed configuration of 
the road & lots provides the required frontage, required lot area, and required contiguous 
buildable area for each lot. 
 
 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 74



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           N O T                 N O T                                                      A N                   A N                                                 O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                                               C O P Y               C O P Y                                                                                                                                    N O T                 N O T                                                      A N                   A N                                                 O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                                               C O P Y               C O P Y                         

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 75



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           N O T                 N O T                                                      A N                   A N                                                 O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                                               C O P Y               C O P Y                                                                                                                                    N O T                 N O T                                                      A N                   A N                                                 O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                                               C O P Y               C O P Y                         

PLANNING BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 PAGE 76


	2023-08-15 DRAFT Durham Leisure Campground - Route 136 Durham - Existing & Concept.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	24x36


	Sketch plan 2023.07.19.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Concept
	OLE1



	Sketch Plan Application.pdf
	01.Sketch Plan Application Form
	02.QUAD Map
	Sheets and Views
	QUAD


	03.SCS Soil Survey
	04.taxmap 5
	05.Project Narrative

	Ruby Farmview 2018.pdf
	Page Identifiers
	AFP Page


	Ruby Farmview 2021.pdf
	Page Identifiers
	AFP Page


	Town Record of Approvals.pdf
	Town Record of Approvals.1.pdf
	Town Record of Approvals.pdf

	Draft Findings of Fact Liesure Campground 8-29.pdf
	a. The applicant submitted an email from Tony Fontaine of the Maine Department of Transportation stating that MDOT has no record of an Entrance Permit being issued for the location.
	b. The email further indicates that the entrance is “grandfathered” per MDOT Access Management regulations as long as there is no change in use.
	c. The email goes on to state that the entrance predates MDOT regulations that went into effect in May of 2002 and no permit review would be needed to expand its use.
	d. The entrance is located on Route 136, a State Highway that has regular traffic as well as trucking traffic.
	e. The applicant has stated that there would be a slow increase in traffic due to the phasing and seasonal nature of the use.
	f. The applicant has provided no details on the internal circulation drives in terms of widths or directions of travel lanes or on pedestrian facilities.
	a.  The applicant has stated that no school enrollment will be generated by the project.
	b. The applicant has stated that no buildings are associated with the expansion that would require fire protection.
	c. The applicant doesn’t foresee any need for increased law enforcement.
	d. The applicant has provided no information as to the proposed internal drive system to verify access for Public Safety vehicles.
	e. There is an existing transmission tower on the property and the applicant has provided documents indicating easements exist for that use.
	The applicant has not provided information as to whether the presence of the tower will present any safety issues for RV park residents in terms of fall zones from the tower or access to the tower by unauthorized personnel.
	f. The updated Existing Conditions Plan (8-15-2023) shows a fall zone of 179-foot radius from the tower base.  Five existing campsites are just within the fall zone while no new campsites are in the fall zone.
	g. In an email dated 8-28-2023 the applicant stated that a 2000-gallon water reserve tank will have a Fire Department hookup.
	h. The applicant submitted a diagram showing existing street addresses and a numbering schematic for the existing and proposed campsites.
	a. The applicant has submitted a Wetland, Stream, and Cursory Vernal Pool Delineation Report performed by Main-Land Development Consultants, Inc.
	b. That report indicates that no significant vernal pools or potential vernal pools exist on the site.
	c. The report indicates that no streams are on the site.
	d. The report indicates the presence of a small vernal pool of just under 2000 sq. ft. that appears to be a man-made pond located between Route 136 and the gravel access road near the front of the property.
	e. The Existing Conditions Plan shows a much larger wetland system located between the transmission tower and the proposed expansion that is not mentioned in the report.
	f. The applicant has stated that all sites are wooded and minimal clearing of trees will occur.
	g. The applicant has stated that future sites and roads will be built off existing logging roads.
	a. The applicant has stated that the area is characterized by residential homes, home businesses, commercial businesses and farms.
	b. The applicant has stated that the nearest house is 400 feet away. It is not clear if that distance is from the property line, the existing RV park, or the proposed expansion.
	c. The applicant has stated that all RVs will be screened by the natural landscape.
	d. The applicant has stated that from 400 of 100 feet minimum from property line.
	e. The applicant refers to a Google map submitted with the application.
	a. The applicant has stated that office hours are 9:00 to 9:00.
	b. The applicant has stated that pool hours are 9:00 to dusk.
	c. The applicant has stated that quiet time is 10:00 pm to 7:00 am.
	d. The applicant has stated that the occupants are mostly seasonal workers and are very quiet.
	e. The applicant has stated that there is no tenting.
	a. The applicant submitted an Agent’s Certificate identifying Kenneth P. Huot and Gwenn M. Huot as company members of Durham Leisure Holdings LLC.
	b. The applicant submitted a 2016 annual filing report with the Maine Secretary of State characterizing Durham Leisure Holdings LLC as a land holding company.
	c. The applicant submitted a deed of transfer from the estate of Harold Cochrane to Durham Leisure Holdings LLC.
	d. The applicant submitted two exhibits for a communications and access and utility easements along with a map showing access to the transmission tower.
	e. The applicant submitted a corporate filing report for 2022.
	a. The applicant stated that the project is estimated to cost $700,000 +/- and the project will be financed from personal savings.
	b. The applicant submitted a letter from Bangor Savings Bank stating that the applicant has deposit accounts in excess of $675,000.
	c. The applicant submitted a receipt from the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers.
	d. The applicant submitted a hand drawn electrical distribution system.
	e. The applicant submitted a campground license from the Maine Department of Health and Human Services.
	f. The applicant stated he is using Main-Land Development as a consultant.




